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To Our Shareholders

As American Independence Corp. (NASDAQ:AMIC) enters its fourth full year as a health insurance
holding company, we are well-situated to capitalize on what we believe is a revolution in the way healthcare is
financed in the United States. For companies, such as ours, that are willing to embrace change and adapt to
new ideas, the opportunities in healthcare insurance appear limitless. Since AMIC is a relatively new entrant
to fully-insured health insurance, we are not constrained by institutional inertia. However, we are blessed with
a veteran management team that has many years of experience in medical insurance. In particular, our
affiliate, Insurers Administrative Corporation, has been developing and administering innovative fully-insured
health plans for over 28 years. The combination of this experience with AMIC’s willingness to “think outside
the box™ is truly exciting, and makes us quite optimistic as to your Company’s future. As discussed below, the
clearest examples of this strategy are the distribution of our short-term medical insurance (“STM”) to
graduating college students and people in “gap” periods due to starting or ending jobs, and the marketing of
our fully-insured and self-insured products directly to decision makers in small businesses through a new
marketing alliance. Before continuing to look forward, let’s first take a look back at 2005.

Medical Stop-Loss

Medical stop-loss continues to be our largest product line both for Independence American Insurance
Company and our managing general underwriters (MGUs). Business written in 2004 was profitable, although
less so than in prior years, primarily due to:a “soft” market. Higher loss ratios adversely affect us by
(1) reducing the profitability of business reinsured by Independence American; (ii) lowering profit commis-
sions earned by our MGUSs; and (iii) reducing our premiums due to corrective underwriting actions taken in
order to increase profitability, which affected both premiums at Independence American and fee income from
the MGUs. Some of our competitors were willing to write business in 2005 at profit margins lower than those
acceptable to us, which caused our quotes to be less competitive.

Independence American is primarily a reinsurer, and currently derives most of its business from pro rata
quota share medical stop-loss reinsurance treaties with Standard Security Life Insurance Company of
New York and Madison National Life Insurance Company, Inc., which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Independence Holding Company (“THC”). IHC owns 48% of the Company’s common stock. These treaties
were entered into in 2002 and will terminate on December 31, 2014, unless terminated sooner by
Independence American. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, Standard Security Life and
Madison National Life ceded an average of 21.9% of their medical stop-loss business to Independence
American, making it their largest reinsurer, as compared to 19.3% in 2004. Although this percentage could
change, it is not likely that the percentage will increase significantly during 2006. Due to the corrective
underwriting actions, the amount of medical: stop-loss premiums reinsured by Independence American
remained relatively flat for 2005 even with the increase in the percentage of business ceded to it. We expect
reinsurance premiums to increase in 2006 due to the appointment by Standard Security Life and Madison
National Life of four new MGUs in late 2005 and early 2006. In 2005, the Company increased rates and made
changes indicated through its auditing processes. Based on currently available information, business incepting
in 2005, of which a material portion will be earned and recorded in 2006, is projected to achieve a net loss ratio
that is more favorable than the previous year, We expect business incepting in 2006 to continue to be
profitable. While we are confident that the actions taken will increase the profitability of our medical stop-loss
block in 2005, we have taken significant steps to!diversify our reinsurance premiums and to position AMIC to
issue a variety of health insurance products.

Diversification of Reinsured Premium
Independence American began reinsuring 20% of Standard Security Life’s short-term statutory disability
benefit product (“DBL”) in July 2004. All companies with more than one employee in New York State are
required to provide DBL insurance for their employees. DBL coverage provides temporary cash payments to
replace wages lost as a result of disability due to non-occupational injury or illness. In 2005, Standard Security
Life and Madison National Life began ceding 10% of their group major medical business (including consumer
driven health plans (“CDHPs”)) and 10% of their STM products to Independence American. CDHPs are
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fully-insured major medical coverage designed to work with health reimbursement accounts (“HRAs”) and
health savings accounts (“HSAs™), which are implemented by employers that wish to provide this benefit as
part of an employee welfare benefit plan. CDHPs are designed to provide participants with economic
incentives to be informed consumers of healthcare. STM is designed specifically for people with transient
needs for| health coverage. STM products are written as major medical coverage with a defined duration,
which is normally twelve months or less. Among the typical purchasers of STM products are self-employed
professioﬂals, recent college graduates, persons between jobs, employed individuals not currently eligible for

group ins‘urance, and others who need insurance for a specified period of time. DBL and the fully-insured

health lines tend to be less volatile and less cyclical in nature than medical stop-loss. Therefore, as we increase

the perce‘ntage of our reinsured premiums derived from fully-insured business, our overall block should
become more predictable and less susceptible to cycles such as that currently affecting the medical stop-loss

market. |
|

Issuing Carrier Opportunities
\

As v‘Jve have reported to you in this letter in prior years, a very significant part of our business plan is to
position I‘ndcpendencc American to become an issuing carrier as well as a reinsurer. There are three critical
components to meeting this goal: (i) increasing the number of states in which we are licensed, (ii) receiving
approvals for various health insurance products in these states, and (iii) identifying distribution channels that
will market products from a company that does not have an “A” rating from A.M. Best Company, Inc.
(“A.M. Best”). Independence American, which is domiciled in Delaware, is licensed to write property and/or
casualty insurance in 37 states and the District of Columbia, and has a B++ (Very Good) rating from A.M.
Best. Wq‘ currently have 11 applications pending, and are optimistic that we will add at least seven more
licenses in 2006. We now have employer medical stop-loss and STM approved in the majority of states in
which wé are licensed. Independence American will continue to seek additional approvals of these products
and will |consider filing other fully-insured health products during 2006. Our challenge is finding suitable

distribution channels.

Given its current rating, the most attractive distribution channel for Independence American’s products is
direct to ‘rthe consumer. Most agents and brokers, due to requirements of their errors and omissions policies or
otherwise, will only market excess insurance policies (such as medical stop-loss) that is written by comparnies
with ratir‘lgs higher than that currently held by Independence American. Standard Security Life and Madison
National‘r Life market their products through agents and brokers, so AMIC could not rely on THC’s traditional
distribution sources. In 2005, Independence American began promoting the sale of STM products to
graduatir}xg college students. STM is ideal coverage for this type of individual because it is affordable
comprehensive major medical insurance that fills the “gap” between graduation and eligibility for employer-
sponsoreh group coverage. Last year, we attempted a direct mail campaign to the students’ parents. For May
2006 graduates, we have chosen to direct the campaign to the students themselves through fiiers included with
their cap‘s and gowns, advertisements and “infomercials” on university television stations, e-mails and website
advertising targeted towards graduating seniors who are searching employment, travel or graduate education
sites. We also believe that STM is an underutilized alternative for new employees who have a “gap” in
coverage before they are eligible for group coverage, and for terminated employees who are seeking an
affordable alternative to COBRA. Based on a focus group we conducted, human resource personnel are
generall}‘/ not familiar with STM, but would welcome the opportunity to present it to such new and terminating
employees. To respond to this need, we have developed informational materials that can be distributed by
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human resource departments, and we are identifying various methods of promoting their use.

Ho‘wever, our most exciting distribution channel relates to an agreement signed in February 2006 with
Employers Direct Health (“EDH”). EDH is a marketing organization with a $27 million block of fully-
insured health business, including CDHPs, primarily sold to small employer groups, and an $8 million block of
medicaI/stop-loss. EDH will move the majority of its existing block of fully-insured and stop-loss health
insurance to Independence American in January 2007, with the balance moving by the end of 2007. This

block, which is expected to produce meaningful growth, has averaged 8% risk profit over the past five years,
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although there is no guaranty that such results will be maintained. Independence American will be the
exclusive issuing carrier for business underwn’tter} by this organization through December 31, 2011, with an
option to extend the agreement until December 31, 2016,

Looking Forward

Independence American’s premiums increaifsed from $7 million in 2002 to $66 million in 2005. In
addition, since its acquisition, Independence American’s statutory surplus increased from $22 million in
December 2002, to over $39 million at December 31, 2005. The Company’s adjusted stock price grew from
$5.40 per share at July 30, 2002, the time the Company announced its intention to become an insurance and
reinsurance holding company, to $12.00 per share at March 31, 2006, which amounts to a CAGR of 20.6%.

In order to evaluate our prospects, it is impor\]tant to understand that we do not expect to pay any Federal
income taxes (other than alternative minimum taxes) for many years. This is a result of federal net operating
loss carry forwards (“NOLs”) which arose from our prior Internet operations. As of December 31, 2005, the
NOLs were $278 million. Our MGU business is not capital intensive and, as a result of utilization of our
NOLs, we are able to put most of our pre-tax income to work by contributing additional capital to
Independence American or making funds available for acquisitions and investments. We continue to
encourage you to look more closely at how much cash we are generating for our shareholders rather than just
considering our net income. 1

As we look forward to our next several years, \%ve believe your Company can improve upon its 2005 results.
We are very excited that by 2007 we will be writing a significant block of health insurance on our paper, and
will receive increased fully-insured health reinsurance premiums to grow and diversify our reinsurance book.

We are grateful for the dedicated service of ofur staff, management team, and Board of Directors, and for
the continuing support of our shareholders.

Very truly yours,

fe

Roy T.K. Thung
Chief Executive Officer and President

Dated: April 28, 2006
www.americanindependencecorp.com




PRODUCT LINES
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Medical Stop-Loss

o [Employer Medical Stop-Loss Insurance products that allow self-insured employers to manage the risk
[of excessive health insurance exposures by limiting aggregate and specific losses to a predetermined
amount.

|

e \Provider Excess Loss/HMO Reinsurance Insurance and reinsurance products for providers, HMOs and
managed care organizations that either desire or are required, by contract or state regulation to
purchase such coverage to reduce their risk assumption.

New York Short-Term DBL

« DBL New York State mandated temporary cash payments to replace wages lost as a result of disability
due to non-occupational injury or illness.

Fully Insured Health Products

o | Employer-Sponsored Group Major Medical Fully-insured major medical coverage designed to work
}With health reimbursement accounts (“HRA”) and health savings accounts (“HSA™).

« 1 Short-Term Medical Fully-insured major medical coverage with a defined duration, which is normally
twelve months or less.

Dental/Vision Dental indemnity and PPO coverage for small and large employer and affinity groups.
Vision benefits for a specified amount toward eye exams and the purchase of eye glasses and contact
lenses.

|
RECONCILIATION OF GAAP INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS TO NON-GAAP

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Three Months Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31,
| 2005 2004 2005 2004
(In thousands except per share data)

Ipcome from continuing operations ................. $ 1972 $1,079 $ 5,519 § 5,664
Amortization of intangible assets related to purchase
’ ACCOURLING - . .o e oo el 202 334 809 1,326
ITederal income tax charge related to deferred taxes ... (48) 692 1,785 3,018
Reduction of valuation allowance related to deferred

TAX ASSEL .\t (2,079) — (2,079) —
Income from continuing operations excluding
}f amortization and Federal income tax charge ....... $ 47  $2,105 $ 6,034 $10,008
IJ\Ion — GAAP Basic Income Per Common Share:
Income from continuing operations excluding

amortization and Federal income tax charge ....... $ o $ 25 ¢ 71 § 1.19
IJ\Ion — GAAP Diluted Income Per Common Share:
Income from continuing operations excluding
( amortization and Federal income tax charge ....... § 01 $ 25 § 71 §$ 117
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PART I

Item 1. Business

Since November 2002, the Company has been a holding company engaged in the insurance and reinsurance
business through its wholly-owned insurance company, Independence American Insurance Company (“Indepen-
dence American”), and its managing general underwriter subsidiaries: IndependenceCare Holdings L.L.C. and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “(IndependenccCarc”) Risk Assessment Strategies, Inc. (“RAS”),
Marlton Risk Group LLC (“Marlton”) and its investment in Majestic Underwriters LLC (“Majestic”).
IndependenceCare, RAS and Marlton are collectively referred to as the “MGU Subsidiaries.” Prior to its current
operations, AMIC was an Internet service provider known as SoftNet Systems, Inc.

SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT

From time to time, information provided by the Company, including but not limited to statements in this Item
and in Item 7, other statements in this report, or other statements made by or on behalf of the Company, may
contain “forward-looking” information within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Such statements involve a number of risks, uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond the
Company’s control, which may cause actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from those
anticipated. Set forth in Item lA are certain such factors identified by the Company. Additional risks and
uncertainties and contingencies not presently known to the Company or that the Company currently deems
immaterial could also cause the Company’s results, performance or achievements to differ materially from those
predicted in any forward-looking statement made by or on behalf of the Company.

Principal Products and Services

Independence American Insurance Company

Independence American, which is domiciled in Delaware, is licensed to write - property and/or casualty
insurance in 36 states and the District of Columbia, and has a B++ (Very Good) rating from A.M. Best Company,
Inc. (“A.M. Best”). An A.M. Best rating is assigned after an extensive quantitative and qualitative evaluation of a
company’s financial condition and operating performance, and is also based upon factors relevant to policyholders,
agents, and intermediaries, and is not directed towards protection of investors. A.M. Best ratmgs are not
recommendations to buy, sell or hold securities of the Company.

During 2005, 99% of Independence American’s premmms were derived from assumed reinsurance premiums.
In 2005, 87% of this premium was related to medlcal stop-loss business, 7% was related to fully-insured health
business, and 6% was related to short-term statutory dlsablhty benefit product in New York State (“DBL"”). Of the
medical stop-loss premium, 83% was generated primarily from pro rata reinsurance treaties with Standard Security
Life Insurance Company of New York (“Standard Security Life”} and Madison National Life Insurance
Company, Inc. (“Madison National Life”’) pursuant to which Standard Security Life and Madison National Life,
respectively, will cede, at treaty renewals, at least 15% (and may cede up to 30%) of their Medical Stop-Loss
business to Independence American. Standard Security Life and Madison National Life are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Independence Holding Company (“IHC”), which is a 48% shareholder of the Company. For 2005,
Standard Security Life and Madison National Life ceéded an average of 21.9% of their Medical Stop-Loss business
to Independence American. The reinsurance treaties between Independence American and Standard Security Life
and Independence American and Madison National Life terminate December 31, 2014, unless terminated sooner by
Independence American. Standard Security Life, which is domiciled in New York, has an A (Excellent) rating
from A.M. Best, and is licensed as an insurance company in all 50 states, the District of Columbia, the Virgin
Islands and Puerto Rico. Madison National Life, which is domiciled in Wisconsin, has an A- (Excellent) rating
from A.M. Best, is licensed to sell insurance products in 49 states, the District of Columbia and the Virgin Islands,
and is an accredited reinsurer in New York. The balance of the Medical Stop-Loss assumed reinsurance premium
was related to business written by unaffiliated carriers on nine other programs. For 2005, Independence American
received between 15% and 25% of the premium on these unaffiliated programs. For more general information on
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types of erinsurance, see “Reinsurance” below. In 2005, Independence American wrote a nominal amount of
provider excess loss and short-term medical. The Company’s strategic plan is to expand the business it writes

directly on Independence American.

Medical Stop-Loss

|

Independence American primarily reinsures employer Medical Stop-Loss insurance for self-insured group
medical p{lans Self-insured plans permit employers flexibility in designing employee health coverages at a cost that
may be lowcr than that available through other health care plans provided by an insurer or Health Maintenance
Orgamzatlon (“HMO”). Employer Medical Stop-Loss insurance allows self-insured employers to manage the risk
of excessive health insurance costs under self funded plans by limiting the employer’s health care expenses to a
predetern‘lined amount. This stop-loss coverage is available on either a “specific” or a “specific and aggregate” basis.
Specific s‘top-loss coverage reimburses employers for large claims incurred by an individual employee or dependent.
When an employee or dependent’s covered claims exceed the specific stop-loss deductible, covered amounts in
excess of [the deductible are reimbursable to the employer under the specific stop-loss policy. The specific stop-loss
deductible is selected based on the number of covered employees, the employer’s capacity to assume some of the
risk, and |the medical claim experience of the plan. Aggregate stop-loss coverage protects the employer against
fluctuations due to claim frequency. The employer’s overall claim liability is limited to a certain doltar amount, often

| . . . .
referred to as the attachment point. An aggregate stop-loss policy usually provides reimbursement when coverage

claims for the plan as a whole exceed the aggregate attachment point. Many of the stop-loss policies Independence
American reinsures cover specific claims only. Standard Security Life and Madison National Life market employer
Medical Stop Loss insurance nationally through a network of managing general underwriters (“MGUs”), which are
non- salaned contractors that reccive administrative fees. Standard Security Life currently markets this product
through ‘13 MGUs, including IndependenceCare, RAS, Marlton and Majestic. Madison National Life currently
markets through five MGUs, including IndependenceCare — MidAtlantic. MGUSs are responsible for establishing
an employer’s conditions for coverage in accordance with guidelines formulated and approved by Standard Security
Life and Madlson National Life, billing and collecting premiums from the employers, paying commissions to agents,
Third Party Administrators (“TPAs”) and/or brokers, and adjudicating claims. Standard Security Life and
Madlson[ National Life are responsible for selecting MGUSs, establishing underwriting guidelines, maintaining
approvcd policy forms and reviewing employers’ claims for reimbursement, as well as establishing appropriate

accountmg procedures and reserves.

|

Since 2002, Independence American has issued and/or reinsured managed care excess coverages, including
provider excess loss insurance and HMO Reinsurance. Independence American issues and reinsures provider excess
loss insurance on a specific loss basis only. This product is marketed to providers, managed care organizations,
includiné provider hospital organizations, hospital groups, physician groups and individual practice associations
(collecti\flely “MCOs”) that have assumed risk (through capitation by an HMO or otherwise) and desire to reduce
their risk assumption and/or are required to purchase coverage by contract or regulation. Independence American is
currently approved to write provider excess loss insurance in 14 states. This product is written through In-
dependenceCare and another MGU in which IHC has a 50% interest. These MGUs are responsible for marketing,
underwrmng, billing and collection of premiums, and medically managing, administering and adjudicating claims.
Indepengence American also reinsures provider excess loss insurance written through IndependenceCare and this
other MGU and issued by Standard Security Life on a specific loss basis only. Independence American reinsures
HMO Reinsurance coverage written by Standard Security Life and marketed through IndependenceCare. This

covcrage‘ protects HMOs against excess losses incurred under an HMO health plan and is marketed to HMOs that

desire to reduce their risk assumption and/or are required to purchase coverage by contract or regulation.

The‘ Company’s strategic plan is to expand the employer Medical Stop-Loss business it writes on Independence
America}n paper. As of March 1, 2006, Independence American had employer Medical Stop-Loss policies approved
in 26 states. In February 2006, Independence American entered into an agreement with a marketing organization to
begin wﬁting Employer Medical Stop-Loss business with Independence American immediately, and to transfer its

approximately $8 million block of this line of business (primarily in Texas and North Carolina) to Independence
American at each renewal date (see Note 21 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Independence

|
American has an approved Medical Stop-Loss policy in Texas, but is not currently licensed to write business in
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North Carolina, although it has an application pending. To the extent Independence American’s policy is not
approved in any state where required, it is anticipated that the business will be written by Madison National Life
and a substantial portion of the risk ceded to Independence American, until Independence American has all
necessary approvals.

Primarily as a result of this marketing agreement, AMIC anticipates significant growth in Medical Stop-Loss
business written by Independence American beginning in the second quarter of 2006 and in future years, and
believes that the amount of this line of business reinsured will remain relatively stable unless IHC greatly expands
the amount of business written by its carriers.

Fully-Insured Health
Consumer Driven Health Plans (“CDHPs”)

During 2003, Independence American reinsurcd 10% of the group major medical (primarily Consumer Driven
Health Plans (“CDHPs”) business written by Standard Security Life and Madison National Life. This business,
generally written through agents and brokers that receive commissions, is fully insured major medical coverage
designed to work with health reimbursement accounts (“HRA”) and health savings accounts (“HSA”) which are
implemented by employers that wish to provide this benefit as part of an employee welfare benefit plan. These plans
are offered primarily as Preferred Provider Organizations (“PPO”) plans, and provide a variety of cost-sharing
options, including deductibles, coinsurance and co-payment. Independence American will be filing group major
medical in nine states and major medical plans for individuals and families that include CDHP products in 15 states
in early 2006. As described above, in February 2006, Independence American entered into an agreement with a
marketing organization to begin writing group major medical business with Independence American in 2007, and to
transfer its approximately $27 million block of this line of business (primarily in Texas and North Carolina) to
Independence American in 2007. Independence American expects to-have its group major medical policy approved
in Texas prior to the transfer date, and hopes to be licensed and have an approved product in North Carolina. To the
extent Independence American’s policy is not approved in any state where required, it is anticipated that the
business will be written by Madison National Life and a substantial portion of the risk ceded to Independence
American, until Independence American has all necessary approvals,

Primarily as a result of this marketing agreement, AMIC anticipates significant growth in this line of business
beginning in 2007 and in future years. In addition, IHC has announced that it anticipates significant growth in this
line of business in 2006 and in future years, which would mean more reinsurance premium for Independence
American assuming the existing treaties with Standard Security Life and Madison National Life remain in effect,

Short-Term Medical (“STM”)

During 2005, Independence American reinsured 10% of the STM business written by Standard Security Life
and Madison National Life. This business, primarily written through agents and brokers that receive commissions, is
designed specifically for people with transient needs for health coverage. Typically, STM products are written as
major medical coverage with a defined duration, which is normally twelve months or less. Among the typical
purchasers of STM products would be self-employed professionals, recent college graduates, people between jobs,
employed individuals not currently eligible for group msurance and others who need insurance for a specified period
of time.

Independence American began, during 2005, marketing STM directly to parents of graduating college students
in a limited number of states through a direct mall campaign featuring www.ProtectYourGrad.com. In 2006,
Independence American will introduce a new campaign through www.HealtheGrad.com, which will utilize
advertisements and “infomercials” on university television stations, e-mails and website advertising targeted towards
graduating seniors who are searching employment, travel or graduate education sites. In addition, Independence
American will conduct a marketing campaign through its www.protectyourgrad.com website in conjunction with a
leading distributor of caps and gowns to graduating college seniors. Independence American will also place website
banner advertisements and conduct tabletop marketing of the product during graduation week in select locations
frequented by graduating seniors. Independence American will continue to test other methods of selling STM to
uninsured persons in a cost efficient manner, and is currently approved to write STM in 31 states.
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AMIC anticipates significant growth in STM business written by Independence American in 2006 and in
future years. In addition, IHC has announced that it anticipates significant growth in this line of business in 2006
and in future years, which would mean more reinsurance premium for Independence American assuming the
existing treaties with Standard Security Life and Madison National Life remain in effect.

Short-term Statutory Disability

|

Commencmg in July 2004, Independence American began reinsuring 20% of Standard Security Life’s short-
term statutory disability benefit product in New York State (“DBL”). All companies with more than one employee
in New York State are required to provide DBL insurance for their employees. DBL coverage provides temporary
cash pameents to replace wages lost as a result of disability due to non-occupational injury or illness. The DBL
policy provides for (i) payment of 50% of salary to a maximum of $170 per week; (ii) a maximum of 26 weeks in a
consecutiv‘e 52 week period; and (iii} benefit commencement on the eighth consecutive day of disability. Policies
covering fewer than 50 employees have fixed rates approved by the New York State Insurance Department. Policies
covering 50 or more employees are individually underwritten. The DBL business is marketed primarily through

independe‘nt general agents,

AMIC expects the reinsurance premium from this line of business to remain relatively stable assuming the

existing tr“eaties with Standard Security Life and Madison National Life remain in effect.

f

Managing General Underwriters

The MGU’S are responsible for marketing, underwriting, billing and collecting premiums and administering
and processing claims. IndependenceCare and RAS are the two MGU Subsidiaries acquired as part of the

November 2002 transaction with THC. IndependenceCare markets and underwrites employer Medical Stop-Loss,
provider excess loss and HMO Reinsurance products for Standard Security Life, Madison National Life,
Independence American and another carrier. IndependenceCare currently has four operating subsidiaries, In-
dependenceCare Underwriting Services — Minneapolis L.L.C., IndependenceCare Underwriting Services — Ten-
nessee L L.C., IndependenceCare Underwriting Services — Southwest L.L.C. and IndependenceCare
Underwntmg Services — MidAtlantic LLC. RAS markets and underwrites employer Medical Stop-Loss and group

life for St‘andard Security Life and another carrier.

The Company acquired on February 10, 2003, but effective as of January 1, 2003, 80% of the business of two
affiliated employer Medical Stop-Loss MGUs (the “Acquired MGUs™). The acquisition was accomplished by the
formatlon of Marlton Risk Group LLC (“Marlton”) into which the Acquired MGU s contributed all of their assets,
and the Company contributed $16,000,000 cash for an 80% ownership interest. The Company’s cash contribution
was then|distributed to the Acquired MGUSs together with the remaining 20% interest in Marlton, and Marlton
assumed [all of the liabilities of the Acquired MGUs. Marlton is an MGU for employer Medical Stop-Loss and
group life for Standard Security Life, Madison National Life and two other carriers.

On July 13, 2004, the Company acquired a 23% interest in Majestic Underwriters LLC (“Majestic”), an
ernployer Medical Stop Loss MGU. THC owns 52% of Majestic and Majestic’s management owns the remaining
25%. Thc/: purchase price for AMIC’s interest in Majestic was $1,610,000.

|

Reinsurance

Reinsurance is an arrangement in which an insurance company (the “reinsurer”) agrees to indemnify another

insurance company (the “ceding company”) against all or a portion of the insurance risks underwritten by the
ceding company under one or more insurance contracts. Reinsurance provides a ceding company with additional

underwriting capacity by permitting it to accept larger risks and write more business than would be possible without
an accorr‘llpanying increase in capital and surplus. There are two basic types of reinsurance arrangements: treaty and

facultative reinsurance. In treaty reinsurance, the ceding company is obligated to cede and the reinsurer is obligated

to assum“e a specified portion of a type of category of risks insured by the ceding company. Treaty reinsurers do not

separatel‘y evaluate each of the individual risks assumed under their treaties and, consequently, after a review of the
ceding company’s underwriting practices, are largely dependent on the original risk underwriting decisions made by
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the ceding company. In facultative reinsurance, the ‘ceding company cedes and the reinsurer assumes all or part of
the risk under a single insurance contract. Independence American currently only participates in treaty reinsurance.
Both treaty and facultative reinsurance can be written on either a pro rata basis or an excess of loss basis. Under pro
rata reinsurance, the ceding company and the reinsurer share the premiums as well as the losses and expenses in an
agreed proportion. Under excess of loss reinsurance; the reinsurer indemnifies the ceding company against all or a
specified portion of losses and expenses in excess of a specified dollar amount, known as the ceding company’s
retention or reinsurer’s attachment point, generally subject to a negotiated reinsurance contract limit. Premiums
paid by the ceding company to a reinsurer for exjcess of loss reinsurance are not directly proportional to the
premiums that the ceding company receives because the reinsurer does not assume a proportionate risk. In pro rata
reinsurance, the reinsurer generally pays the ceding company a ceding commission. The ceding commission
generally is based on the ceding company’s cost of acquiring and managing the business being reinsured
(commissions, premium taxes, assessments and miscellaneous administrative expenses). Independence American
primarily participates in pro rata reinsurance for their Medical Stop-Loss business.

Federal Net Operating Loss Carryforwards

At December 31, 2005, AMIC had consolidated net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”) of approximately
$278 million for federal income tax purposes. Some or all of the NOL carryforwards may be available to offset, for
federal income tax purposes, the future taxable income, if any, of AMIC as described in more detail in Note 14 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™) has not audited any of
AMIC’s tax returns for any of the years during the carryforward period, including those returns for the years in
which the losses giving rise to the NOL carryforward were reported.

AMIC’s ability to utilize its NOL’s would be substantially reduced if AMIC were to undergo an “ownership
change” within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).
Generally, an “ownership change” occurs if one or more “5% Stockholders” (which generally includes any
stockholder who owns five percent or more in value of a company’s capital stock) increase their aggregate
percentage ownership by more than 50 percentage points over the lowest percentage of stock owned by such
stockholders over the preceding three-year period. For this purpose, all holders who each own less than five percent
of a company’s capital stock generally are treated. together as a single “5% Stockholder.” In addition, certain
attribution rules, which generally attribute ownership of stock to the ultimate beneficial owner thereof without
regard to ownership by nominees, trusts, corporations, partnerships, or other entities, are applied to determine the
level of stock ownership of a particular stockholder. Transactions in the public markets among stockholders owning
less than five percent of the equity securities are generally not included in the calculation, but acquisitions by a
person causing that person to become a five percent or more stockholder may be treated as a five percentage (or
more) point change in ownership, regardless of the size of the purchase that caused the threshold to be exceeded.

In order to reduce the risk of an ownership change, in November 2002, AMIC’s stockholders approved an
amendment to its Certificate of Incorporation restricting transfers of shares of its common stock that could result in
the imposition of limitations on the use, for federal, state and city income tax purposes, of AMIC’s carryforwards of
net operating losses and certain federal income tax credits. The Certificate of Incorporation generally restricts any
person from attempting to sell, transfer or dispose, or purchase or acquire any AMIC stock, if such transfer would
affect the percentage of AMIC stock owned by a 5% stockholder. Any person attempting such a transfer will be
required, prior to the date of any proposed transfer, to request in writing that the board of directors review the
proposed transfer and authorize or not authorize such proposed transfer. Any attempted transfer made in violation of
the stock transfer restrictions will be null and void. In the event of an attempted or purported transfer involving a
sale or disposition of capital stock in violation of stock transfer restrictions, the transferor shall remain-the owner of
such shares. Notwithstanding such transfer restrictions, there could be circumstances under which an issuance by
AMIC of a significant number of new shares of Common Stock or other new class of equity security having certain
characteristics (for example, the right to vote or convert into Common Stock) might result in an ownership change
under the Code.

|
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Investments and Reserves

IndepFndence American’s securities portfolio is managed by employees of IHC and its affiliates, and ultimate
investment authority rests with Independence American’s Board of Directors. As a result of the nature of its
insurance |liabilities, Independence American endeavors to maintain a significant percentage of its assets in
investment grade securities, cash and cash equivalents. At December 31, 2005, 97% of the fixed maturities were
investment grade. The internal investment group provides a summary of the investment portfolio and the

performanc‘:e thereof at the meetings of the Company’s board of directors.

Liabilities for insurance reserves were computed using information derived from actual historical premium and
claim data}. These methods are widely used in the health insurance industry to estimate the liabilities for insurance
reserves. Inherent in these calculations are management and actuarial judgments and estimates which could
significantly impact the ending reserve liabilities and, consequently, operating results. Actual results may differ, and
these estimates are subject to interpretation and change. See critical accounting policies for further explanation of

insurance reserve calculation.

Under Delaware insurance law, there are restrictions relating to the percentage of an insurer’s admitted assets
that may be invested in a specific issuer or in the aggregate in a particular type of investment. In addition, there are
qualitative| investment restrictions. '

Competition and Regulation

Independence American competes with many larger insurance and reinsurance companies and managed care
organizations. The MGU Subsidiaries compete with many other managing general underwriters, insurance
companies‘, HMOs and other managed care organizations.

The (‘Company is an insurance holding company; as such, it is subject to regulation and supervision by the
insurance supervisory agency of Delaware. Independence American is also subject to regulation and supervision in
all jurisdic;tions in which it is licensed to transact business. These supervisory agencies have broad administrative
powers wiFh respect to the granting and revocation of licenses to transact business, the licensing of agents, the
approval o‘f policy forms, the approval of commission rates, the form and content of mandatory financial statements,
reserve requirements and the types and maximum amounts of investments which may be made. Such regulation is
primarily c“lesigned for the benefit of policyholders rather than the stockholders of an insurance company or holding

company.

Certain transactions within the holding company system are also subject to regulation and supervision by such
regulatory agencies. All such transactions must be fair and equitable. Notice to or prior approval by the insurance
dcpartmeqt is required with respect to transactions affecting the ownership or control of an insurer and of certain
material transactions, including dividend declarations, between an insurer and any person in its holding company
system. Under Delaware insurance laws, “control” is defined as the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to
direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, and is presumed to exist if any person,
directly orl indirectly, owns, controls or holds with the power to vote ten percent or more of the voting securities of
any other \rperson. An agreement to acquire control of an insurer domiciled in Delaware must be approved by the
Commissioner of Insurance of Delaware. In addition, periodic disclosure is required concerning the operations,
manageme‘:nt and financial condition of the insurer within the holding company system. An insurer is also required to
file detailed annual statements with each supervisory agency, and its affairs and financial conditions are subject to

BN
periodic examination.

Risk-based capital requirements are imposed on property and casualty insurance companies. The risk-based
capital ratéo is determined by dividing an insurance company’s total adjusted capital, as defined, by its authorized

control lev‘el risk-based capital. Companies that do not meet certain minimum standards require specified corrective

action. The risk-based capital ratio for Independence American exceeds such minimum ratios.

Discontinued Operations

Prior|to becoming an insurance holding company in November 2002, the Company (then known as SoftNet
Systems, Inc.) was a holding company principally engaged in providing Internet services. As of September 30, 2002,
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the Company had discontinued the businesses of Intelligent Communications, Inc. (“Intellicom”), Aerzone
Corporation (“Aerzone”), ISP Channel, Inc. (“ISP Channel”), Kansas Communications, Inc. (“KCI”), and
Micrographic Technology Corporation (“MTC”). Due to difficult and deteriorating conditions in that market, the
Company wound down these businesses. In December 2000, the Company’s board of directors approved a plan to
discontinue the operations of its subsidiary, ISP Channel Inc., which had provided cable-based Internet access and
related services, and the operations of another subsidiary, Aerzone Corporation, which provided Internet and related
services at airports. In April 2002, the Company ceased operations of its remaining operating subsidiary, Intelligent
Communications, Inc., following the disposition of its key assets. In connection with the Company’s exit from the
Internet provider business, it undertook a process of consideration of strategic alternatives for the Company.

On July 30, 2002, the Company entered into'an agreement to acquire First -Standard Holdings Corp.
(“FSHC”) from SSH Corp. and Independence Holdlng Company (“IHC”) for $31.92 million in cash. As
described below, FSHC was the holding company for an insurance company and two managing general underwriters
(*MGUs”). Subsequently, at the Special Meeting of Stockholders on November 14, 2002, the Company’s
stockholders approved the stock purchase agreement between the Company, SSH Corp. and IHC (the “Purchase
Agreement”), and approved the Company’s name chahge to American Independence Corp. Also on November 14,
2002, the Company consummated the transactions contemplated by the Purchase Agreement and FSHC changed
its name to Independence American Holdings Corp. (‘IAHC”). Following this acquisition, the Company closed its
offices in San Francisco, terminated all but two of its ‘employees, and entered into a services agreement with IHC
pursuant to which the Company’s operations are primarily directed by IHC’s management and employees.

In a separate transaction, on July 30, 2002, IHC acquired Pacific Century Cyberworks Limited’s (“PCCW”’)
entire interest in the Company consisting of 1,666,666 shares of common stock at $9.00 per share for a total value of
$15 million. As a result of this transaction, PCCW’s two appointees resigned from the Company’s Board of
Directors, and Edward Netter, Chairman of IHC, and Roy T.K. Thung, President and Chief Executive Officer of
IHC, were appointed to the Company’s Board of Directors. On April 22, 2003, a wholly-owned subsidiary of IHC
completed its tender for one million shares of the common stock of the Company at $9.00 per share for a total value
of $9,000,000. On December 22, 2003, IHC purchased 613,401 shares in the market and through private
transactions. During 2004, THC purchased an addltlonal 1% interest in the Company, bringing its aggregate interest
in the Company to 40%. During 2005, THC purchased an additional 8% interest, bringing its aggregate interest in
the Company to 48%.

The operating results of these discontinued operations have been segregated from continuing operations and are
reported as a gain (loss) from discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of operations. Although it is
difficult to predict the final results, the loss on disposition from discontinued operations includes management’s
estimates of costs to wind down the business and costs to settle its outstanding liabilities. The actual results could
differ from these estimates. The estimated loss on disposition reserve of all discontinued operations is reflected in net
liabilities associated with discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The cash flows
used in discontinued operations are presented separately in the operating activities section of the statement of cash
flows; there were no cash flows associated with 1nvest1ng and financing activities for the years presented for
discontinued operations.

Discontinued Operations of Intelligent Communications, Inc. (“Intellicom”)

On March 29, 2002, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Intellicom, entered into an agreement to
sell its operating business and certain assets to Loral Cyberstar, Inc. Following the sale of its operating business and
certain assets to Loral Cyberstar, Inc., the Company’s Board of Directors unanimously agreed to cease the
operations of Intellicom on April 3, 2002. Principally due to the Company’s guaranty of Intellicom’s lease for its
facility in Livermore, California, the Company has reserves for discontinued operations of Intellicom of $808,000 for
this liability at December 31, 2005. i

Discontinued Operations of Aerzone Corporation (“Aerzone”)

On January 24, 2000, the Company founded Aerzone (formerly SoftNet Zone, Inc.) to provide high-speed
Internet access to global business travelers. As part of the Aerzone business, the Company acquired Laptop Lane,
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on April 21, 2000. On December 19, 2000, the Company decided to discontinue the Aerzone business in light of
significant long-term capital needs and the difficulty of securing the necessary financing because of the current state
of the financial markets. The Company has no remaining reserve for Aerzone at December 31, 2005.

Discor:m'nued Operations of ISP Channel, Inc. (“ISP Channel”)

On December 7, 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a plan to discontinue providing cable-based
Intemet‘scrvices through its ISP Channel subsidiary by December 31, 2000, because consolidation in the cable

television industry made it difficult for ISP Channel to achieve the economies of scale necessary to provide such
services 1proﬁtably, and the Company was no longer able to bear the costs of maintaining the ISP Channel. The

Company has no remaining reserve for ISP Channel at December 31, 2005.

Discor‘ttinued Operations of Micrographic Technology Corporation (“MTC”)

As 151 result of the December 31, 1999 sale of MTC to Global Information Distribution GmbH (“GID”) the
Companly discontinued operations of MTC. The Company has no remaining reserve for MTC at December 31,
2005. |

|

Discontinued Operations of Kansas Communications, Inc (“KCI”)

As 8‘. result of the February 12, 1999 sale of the assets of the telecommunications segment, KCI, to Convergent
Communications Services, Inc., the Company discontinued this segment. The Company has no remaining reserve

for KCI [at December 31, 2005.

Employees

Thel Company has 77 employees as of December 31, 2005. We consider our relationship with our employees
to be satisfactory.

Item 1A.! Risk Factors

The| risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones that the Company faces but only those
identified by the Company, in accordance with the requirements of Item 503 (¢} of Regulation S-K, as being the most
sigm'ﬁcaql factors that make investment in the Company speculative or risky and that have special application to the
Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that the Company currently

deems le“ss significant than identified herein may also make investment in the Company speculative or risky.

If a};zy of the following risks actually occur, the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations
could be materially adversely affected. In such case, the trading price of the Company’s common stock could decline.

The C?mpany’s Loss Reserves are Based on an Estimate of Its Future Liability, and if Actual Claims Prove to
be Greater Than The Company’s Reserves, Its Results of Operations and Financial Condition May Be

Adversely Affected

The| Company maintains loss reserves to cover its estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses, including legal and other fees, and costs not associated with specific claims but related to the claims
payment |functions for reported and unreported claims incurred as of the end of each accounting period. Because
setting reserves is inherently uncertain, the Company cannot be sure that current reserves will prove adequate. If the
Compam‘/’s reserves are insufficient to cover its actual losses and loss adjustment expenses, the Company would have
to augment its reserves and incur a charge to its earnings, and these charges could be material. Reserves do not
represent| an exact calculation of liability. Rather, reserves represent an estimate of what the Company expects the
ultimate settlement and administration of claims will cost. These estimates, which generally involve actuarial
projections, are based on the Company’s assessment of facts and circumstances then known. Many factors could
affect these reserves, including economic and social conditions, frequency and severity of claims, medical trend
resulting [from the influences of underlying cost inflation, changes in utilization and demand for medical services,
and changes in doctrines of legal liability and damage awards in litigation. Many of these items are not directly
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quantifiable in advance. Additionally, there may be a significant reporting lag between the occurrence of the insured
event and the time it is reported to the Company. The inherent uncertainties of estimating reserves are greater for
certain types of liabilities, particularly those in which the various considerations affecting the type of claim are
subject to change and in which long periods of time may elapse before a definitive determination of liability is made.
Reserve estimates are continually refined in a regular and ongoing process as experience develops and further claims
are reported and settled. Adjustments to reserves are reflected in the results of the periods in which such estimates
are changed. ‘

The Company’s Results May Fluctuate as a Result of Factors Generally Affecting the Insurance and

Reinsurance Industry 11

The results of companies in the insurance and reinsurance industry historically have been subject to significant
fluctuations and uncertainties. Factors that affect the industry in general could also cause the Company’s results to
fluctuate. The industries and the Company’s ﬁnancml condition and results of operations may be affected
significantly by: |

« Fluctuations in interest rates, inflationary pressures and other changes in the investment environment, which
affect returns on invested capital;

» Rising levels of actual costs that are not known by companies at the time they price their products;
+ Losses related to epidemics, terrorist activities, random acts of violence or declared or undeclared war;

« Changes in reserves resulting from different types of claims that may arise and the development of judicial
interpretations relating to the scope of insurers’ liability;

» The overall level of economic activity and the competitive environment in the industry;
¢ QGreater than expccted‘ use of healthcare sewides by members;
« New mandated benefits or other regulatory changes that increase the Company’s costs; and

+ Failure of MGUs to adhere to underwriting gui?delines as required by the Company in its MGU agreements.

Decrease in Rates for Reinsurance and Insurance Could Reduce Net Income

Independence American, the Company’s insurance subsidiary, primarily reinsures medical stop loss insurance.
Rates for medical stop loss insurance and reinsurance are influenced primarily by factors that are outside of
Independence American’s control and historically have been highly cyclical. Any significant decrease in the rates for
medical stop loss insurance or reinsurance could reduce the Company’s net income.

If the Rating Agencies Downgrade Independence Arherican, the Company’s Results of Operations and
Competitive Position in the Industry May Suffer

Ratings are an important factor in establishing the competitive position of insurance companies. Independence
American is rated B++ (Very Good) by A.M. Best Company, Inc., whose ratings reflect its opinions of an
insurance company’s financial strength, operating performance, strategic position, and ability to meet its obligations
to policyholders, and are not evaluations directed to investors. The rating of Independence American is subject to
periodic review by A.M. Best Company, Inc., and the Company is not assured of the continued retention of this
rating. If A.M. Best Company, Inc. reduces Independence American’s ratings from its current levels, the
Company’s business would be adversely affected.

Stock Transfer Restrictions

Although the stock transfer restrictions contained in the Certificate of Incorporation are intended to reduce the
likelihood of an ownership change, it will not prevent all transfers that might result in an “ownership change.”
Furthermore, certain changes in relationships and other events not addressed by the stock transfer restrictions could
cause AMIC to undergo an “ownership change.” Section 382 of the Code is an extremely complex provision with
respect to which there are many uncertainties. In addition, AMIC has not requested a ruling from the IRS
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regarding the effectiveness of the stock transfer restrictions and, therefore, AMIC cannot be certain that the IRS
will agree“ that the stock transfer restrictions are effective for purposes of Section 382 of the Code. Further, AMIC
cannot assure that the stock transfer restrictions or portions thereof will be enforceable in Delaware courts or that
the IRS would agree that all of AMIC’s tax net operating loss carryforwards are allowable. In addition, AMIC’s
board of directors may determine, in its sole discretion, to permit a restricted transfer that results in an “ownership
change” %f it determines that such transfer is in the best interests of AMIC. Therefore, the stock transfer restrictions
were to reduce, but not necessary eliminate, the risk that Section 382 of the Code will cause limitations on the use of

tax attriﬂutes of AMIC.

Adkere"nce by the MGU'’s to Underwriting Guidelines

The( Company’s MGU agreements require that the MGU follow underwriting guidelines published by the
company, and amended from time to time. Failure to follow these guidelines may result in termination or
modification of the MGU agreement. The Company performs periodic audits to confirm adherence to the
guideline}s, but it is possible that the Company would not detect a breach in the guidelines for several months after

the infraction which could result in a material impact on the loss ratio for that MGU and could have a material

impact o]n the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.

Inability to Assess Underwriting Risk Accurately Could Reduce Net Income

|

The‘ Company’s success is dependent on its ability to assess accurately the risks associated with the businesses
on which the risk is retained. If the Company fails to assess accurately the risks it retains, it may fail to establish the
appropriate premium rates and its reserves may be inadequate to cover its losses, requiring augmentation of the

\
Company reserves.

If the| Company is Unsuccessful in Competing Against Larger or More Well-Established Competitors, Its
Results of Operations and Financial Condition Will Be Adversely Affected

The Company’s industry is highly competitive and has experienced severe price competition from time to time
over the last several years. The Company faces competition from domestic and international insurance and
reinsurance companies, underwriting agencies, and from diversified financial services companies that are signifi-
cantly Ia{rger than the Company. Some of these competitors have greater financial, marketing and other resources,
have been operating longer than the Company and have established long-term and continuing business relationships
through|the industry, which can be a significant competitive advantage. In addition to competition in the operation
of its business, the Company faces competition from a variety of sources in attracting and retaining qualified
employées. The Company cannot assure that it will maintain its current competitive position in the markets in
which 1f operates, or that it will be able to expand its operations into new markets and compete effectively in the

future. If the Company fails to do so, its business could be materially adversely affected.

If the Company Fails to Comply with Extensive State and Federal Regulations, It Will Be Subject to

Penal‘ties, Which May Include Fines and Suspension and Which May Adversely Affect Its Results of
Operations and Financial Condition.

Thf Company is subject to extensive governmental regulation and supervision. Most insurance regulations are
designec}i to protect the interests of policyholders rather than stockholders and other investors. This regulation,
generally administered by a department of insurance in each state in which it does business, relates to, among other

things:
+ Approval of policy forms and premium rates;

+ Standards of solvency, including risk-based capital measurements, which are a measure developed by the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners and used by state insurance regulators to identify
insurance companies that potentially are inadequately capitalized;

» Licensing of insurers and their agents;

 Restrictions on the nature, quality and concentration of investments;
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¢ Restrictions on the ability of Independence Afneﬁcan to pay dividends to the Company;

+ Restrictions on transactions between insurance; companies and their affiliates;

+ Restrictions on the size of risks insurable undér a single policy;

» Requiring deposits for the benefit of policyholders;

+ Requiring certain methods of accounting;

» Prescribing the form and content of records of financial condition required to be filed; and
» Requiring reserves for losses and other purpos‘es.

State insurance departments also conduct periddic examinations of the affairs of insurance companies and
require the filing of annual and other reports relatmg to the financial condition of insurance companies, holding
company issues and other matters. ,

The Company’s business depends on compliance with applicable laws and regulations and its ability to
maintain valid licenses and approvals for its operatlons Regulatory authorities have broad discretion to grant, renew,
or revoke licenses and approvals.

Regulatory authorities may deny or revoke licenses for various reasons, including the violation of regulations. In
some instances, the Company follows practices based 'on its interpretations of regulations, or those that it believes to
be generally followed by the industry, which may be different from the requirements or interpretations of regulatory
authorities. If the Company does not have the requisite licenses and approvals and does not comply with applicable
regulatory requirements, the insurance regulatory authorities could preclude or temporarily suspend it from carrying
on some or all of its activities or otherwise penalize it. That type of action could have a material adverse effect on its
business. Also, changes in the level of regulation of the insurance industry (whether federal, state or foreign), or
changes in laws or regulations themselves or interpretations by regulatory authorities, could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business.

Certain Proposed Federal and State Legislation May, if Adopted, Adversely Affect the Company’s Insurance
Products

In the continuing debate over health care reform, certain federal and state legislation has been proposed which
could have the effect of making plan sponsors, administrators, or certain other parties liable for punitive damages in
state court. State legislatures also periodically consider bills to fund deficits in state high-risk health care pools that
through assessments that will place an additional financial burden on employee benefit plans. While the Company
cannot predict whether any of these or other proposals will be adopted or what, if any, impact enactment they would
have on its insurance products, the number of employers offering health benefits or choosing self-insured plans could
be reduced, plans could increase the portion paid by employees (thereby reducing participation), pricing and
coverage options could be affected, and the Company could be faced with greater liability exposure.

Decreases in the Fair Market Value of Fixed Maiiurities May Greatly Reduce the Value of the Company’s
Investment Portfolio, and as a Result, the Company’s Financial Condition May Suffer

At December 31, 2005, fixed maturities represented $40.4 million or 83.3% of the Company’s total investments
of $48.5 million. The fair market value of fixed maturities and the related investment income fluctuates depending
on general economic and market conditions. The fair market value of these investments generally increases or
decreases in an inverse relationship with fluctuations in interest rates, while net investment income realized by the
Company will generally increase or decrease in line with changes in market interest rates. In addition, actual net
investment income and/or cash flows from investments that carry prepayment risk, such as mortgage-backed and
other asset-backed securities, may differ from those anticipated at the time of investment as a result of interest rate
fluctuations. An investment has prepayment risk when there is a risk that the timing of cash flows that result from
the repayment of principal might occur earlier than anticipated because of declining interest rates or later than
anticipated because of rising interest rates. The impact of market value fluctuations affects the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements. Because all of the Company’s fixed maturities are classified as available for’sale,
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changes| in the fair market value of the Company’s securities are reflected in the Company’s stockholders’ equity
(accumulated other comprehensive income or loss). No similar adjustment is made for liabilities to reflect a change
in interest rates. Therefore, interest rate fluctuations and economic conditions could adversely affect the Company’s
stockholders’ equity, total comprehensive income and/or cash flows.
IHC Will Exercise Significant Influence Over the Company's Business and Affairs, Which May Result in
Potential Conflicts of Interest Between IHC and the Company; Reliance on IHC’s Expertise

The Company’s operations are being directed by [HC management and employees, which may result in
potential conflicts of interest between IHC and the Company. For example, a conflict may arise if IHC were to

engage in activities or pursue corporation opportunities that overlap with the Company’s business. Because THC’s

manager:ncnt will also constitute the Company’s management, these individuals will have fiduciary duties to both
companies, which could result in conflicts of interest, including the Company foregoing opportunities or taking
actions that disproportionately benefit IHC. IHC will also have at least two representatives on the Company’s Board
of Directors who will have similar conflicts of interest. In addition, the Company is relying upon the management
and expei:rtise of officers of IHC who also serve as officers of the Company.

|

\

The Occurrence of Various Events May Adversely Affect the Company’s Ability to Utilize Fully Its Tax Net

0pera‘ting Loss Carryforwards.

The Company has U.S. federal tax net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $278 million, which may
be used against any profits from the Company’s business. However, events outside of the control of the Company or
IHC, such as certain acquisitions and dispositions of the Company’s common stock, may limit the use of all or a
portion of the Company’s tax net operating loss carryforwards. If such events were to occur, the Company’s
expectation of using its tax net operating loss carryforwards against potential profits would not be realized and the

Compan‘y could potentially have a higher tax liability in the future than it would otherwise have had.

|

Regulatory Restrictions Limit the Company’s Ability to Obtain Dividends from Independence American

One of the Company’s principal assets is its ownership, through a holding company, of all of the shares of
capital stock of Independence American. In the event that the Company needs to receive dividends from
Independence American to meet its obligations for paying principal and interest on outstanding debt obligations,
dividends to stockholders and corporate expenses, payment of such dividends by Independence American would be
subject to regulatory restrictions and would depend on the surplus and future earnings of Independence American is
subject to regulatory restrictions and would depend on the surplus and future earnings of Independence American,
as well :‘?s the regulatory restrictions. As a result, should the Company’s other sources of funds prove to be
inadequate, the Company may not be able to receive dividends from Independence American at times and in

amounts necessary to meet its obligations.

Item 1B.| Unresolved Staff Comments

Not |applicable

Item 2. |Properties

IndependenceCare leases 6,500 square feet of office space in Minneapolis, Minnesota, which expires on
May 31, 2008; 1,200 square feet in Franklin, Tennessee, which expires on June 30, 2007, and 3,100 square feet in
Austin, "lLexas, which expires on September 30, 2008. RAS leases 4,200 square feet of office space in South
Windsor, | Connecticut, which expires on January 31, 2009. Marlton leases 6,000 square feet of office space in
Voorhees, New Jersey, which expires on January 31, 2009.

Item 3. |Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of its businesses.
The Company has established reserves that it believes are sufficient given information presently available related to
its outstanding legal proceedings and claims. The Company believes the results of pending legal proceedings and

N
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claims are not expected to have a material adverse éﬁcct on its financial condition or cash flows, although there
could be such an effect on its results of operations for a particular period.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

PART |

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equtty, Related Stockholder Matters And Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Since November 15, 2002, the Company’s cornnion stock has been listed and traded on the Nasdaq National
Market (“Nasdaq”) under the symbol “AMIC”. From April 14, 1999 through November 14, 2002, the Company’s
common stock was traded and listed on Nasdaq under the symbol “SOFN”. The per share range of high and low
sale prices for the Company’s common stock, as reported on Nasdag, for the following periods are as follows:

Quarter Ended: i
December 31, 2005 .. ... ooeiieei .. e $12.66  $10.75
September 30,2005...................... T $13.40 $12.35
June 30,2005, .. ..o e $13.85  $12.04
March 31,2005 ..o ............................... $14.90  $13.05
Quarter Ended: . '
December 31,2004 ...................... e $15.12  $14.50
September 30,2004...................... e $17.25 $14.95
June 30,2004 . ..o oo e $16.70  $14.81
March 31, 2004 ..o e $16.42  $11.89

At January 25, 2006, there were 81 record holdefs of the Company’s common stock. The closing price for the
Company’s common stock at December 31, 2005 was $11.49.

AMIC’s ability to utilize its Federal Net Operating Loss Carrryforwards (“NOLs”) would be substantially
reduced if AMIC were to undergo an “ownership change” within the meaning of Section 382(g) (1) of the Internal
Revenue Code. AMIC will be treated as having had an “ownership change” if there is more than a 50% increase in
stock ownership during a three year ’“testing period” by “5% stockholders”. In order to reduce the risk of an
ownership change, in November 2002, AMIC’s stockholders approved an amendment to its Certificate of
Incorporation restricting transfers of shares of its common stock that could result in the imposition of limitations on
the use, for federal, state and city income tax purposes, of AMIC’s carryforwards of net operating losses and certain
federal income tax credits. The Certificate of Incorporation generally restricts any person from attempting to sell,
transfer or dispose, or purchase or acquire any AMIC stock, if such transfer would affect the percentage of AMIC
stock owned by a 5% stockholder. Any person attemptmg such a transfer will be required, prior to the date of any
proposed transfer, to request in writing that the board 'of directors review the proposed transfer and authorize or not
authorize such proposed transfer. Any attempted transfer made in violation of the stock transfer restrictions will be
null and void. In the event of an attempted or purported transfer involving a sale or disposition of capital stock in
violation of stock transfer restrictions, the transferor shall remain the owner of such shares. Notwithstanding such
transfer restrictions, there could be circumstances under which an issuance by AMIC of a significant number of new
shares of Common Stock or other new class of equity security having certain characteristics (for example, the right
to vote or convert into Common Stock) might result:in an ownership change under the Code.

The Company does not have any legal restriction on paying dividends.
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The Company’s website is www.americanindependencecorp.com.

Item 6.| Selected Financial Data

The following is a summary of selected consolidated financial data of the Company for each of the last five
years. The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and related notes thereto and ‘Management’s Discussions and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations’ included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K. (In thousands, except per share

data)

Quarter Ended Year Ended
Year Ended December 31, December 31, September 30,
2005 2004 2003 2002(a) 2002 2001

Income Data:
Total|revenues. . ................ $ 83,130 $ 80,378 $ 55,553 $ 2,688 $ 1,730 § 6,530

Net income (loss) applicable to
common shares from continuing

operations ................... $ 5519 § 5664 § 12,561 $(5,577) $(8,830) $(24,518)
Balance1 Sheet Data:
Total|investments .. ............. $ 48,481 $ 44,469 $§ 38,258 $37,010 $40,910 $ 60,494
Total|assets . ................... 129,732 124,395 112,868 83,489 70,814 84,500
Insurance liabilities ............. 37,178 38,042 33,623 16,114 — —
Longsterm debt................. — —_ — — — —
Stock}holdcrs’ equity ... ..., 81,470 76,467 70,128 57,267 63,665 76,446

Per Share Data:

Basic‘}incomc (loss) per common
share from continuing operations $ 65§ 67 $ 1.50 $ (.66) $ (1.05) $§ (2.94)

Diluted income (loss) per common

share from continuing operations $ 65 $ 66 0§ 149 $ (.66) $ (1.05) $ (294)
Book |value per common share .... $§ 964 $ 906 §$ 8.33 $ 6.82 $ 758 § 9.1
Notes:

Excludes all Internet service segments which are discontinued operations.

All per share data has been restated to show the effect of the Company’s one for three reverse split on February 13,
2003 (s‘ée Note 2).

(a) In ‘the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company changed its fiscal year end from September 30 to December 31;

accordingly, results have been separately disclosed for the three — month transition period ended December 31,
2002.
The Selected Financial Data should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated Financial

Statemc"nts and Notes thereto included in Item 8.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of I‘inancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following is a summary of the results of opérations for the Company (in thousands):
: Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
A e $83,130  $80,378  $55,553
BXpenses . ..o 77,491 71,145 45,985
Income from continuing operations, before incorine 17:%. G 5,639 9,233 9,568
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ......... . ..., 120 3,569 (2,993)
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued operations, net of tax... ... (59) 240 110
NEt HICOMIE « . v vt v et ettt e e e e e $ 5460 § 5904 $12,671

Overview

The Company is an insurance holding company engaged in the insurance and reinsurance business through its
wholly-owned insurance company, Independence American Insurance Company (“Independence American”) and
its managing general underwriter subsidiaries (the “MGUs”) that currently specialize in Medical Stop-Loss. Since
November 2002, AMIC has been affiliated with Independence Holding Company (“IHC”), which currently owns
48% of AMIC’s stock, and THC’s senior management has provided direction to the Company through service
agreements between the Company and THC. Independence American’s primary source of income is reinsurance
premiums. The majority of these premiums are ceded to Independence American from IHC under long-term
reinsurance treaties to cede Medical Stop-Loss business to Independence American. In addition, Independence
American assumes fully-insured health and DBL premiums from ITHC, and assumes Medical Stop-Loss premiums
from unaffiliated carriers.

While management considers a wide range of factors in its strategic planning, the overriding consideration is
underwriting profitability. Management’s assessment of trends in healthcare and in the Medical Stop-Loss market
play a significant role in determining whether to expand Independence American’s reinsurance participation
percentage or the number of programs it reinsures. Since Independence American reinsures a portion of all of the
business produced by the MGUs, and since the MGUsiare also eligible to earn profit sharing commissions based on
the profitability of the business they write, the MGUs also emphasize underwriting profitability. In addition,
management focuses on controlling operating costs. By sharing employees with IHC and sharing resources among
the MGUs and Independence American, AMIC strivés to maximize its earnings.

The following are highlights for the Company:

Corporate

« In 2005 further reduced deferred tax asset Valuétion allowance by $2,079,000.

Independence American Insurance Company

« 2005 was negatively impacted by higher than expected claims from certain of Independence American’s
Medical Stop-Loss programs. The Company recorded an overall Net Loss Ratio of 95.1%, 90.9% and 85.2%
in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The overall Net Loss Ratio (“Net Loss Ratio”) is defined as insurance
benefits, claims and reserves, divided by (premiums earned less underwriting expenses)

o Premiums increased 10% to $66.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2005 from $60.2 million in the
year ended 2004. |

« Began reinsuring 10% ($4.0 million) of IHC’s fully-insured health business on January 1, 2005.

» Added three additional licenses in 2005, bﬁnging total to 36 states and District of Columbia.
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|

|

. Average percentage of Medical Stop-Loss business ceded from IHC to Independence American increased to
21.9% during 2005 from 19.3% during 2004.

|

» Began writing short-term medical business in the second quarter of 20035,

* 92% of invested assets in bonds and short-term investments, 97% of the bonds have the highest NAIC rating
designation (NAIC ratings of 1 and 2 designation).

s In February 2006, Independence American entered into an agreement to write fully insured and medical
stop-loss insurance (see Note 21 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

MGU Division (IndependenceCare, Mavriton, RAS)

|

+ In 2005, the MGUs wrote an aggregate of $101.3 million of annualized gross premium and generated pre-tax
income of $4.0 million, as compared to $136.1 million and $6.8 million in 2004, respectively. The MGUs

wrote less premiums due, in part, to the continuing generally “soft” market.

 In 2005, the MGUs generated revenues of $14.4 million, as compared to $17.7 million in 2004, a decrease of
19%, due to lower volume and lower profit commissions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting
prmmples (“GAAP”). The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the Company’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. A summary of the
Comparny’s significant accounting policies and practices is provided in Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated
F1nanc1al Statements included in Item 8. Management has identified the accounting policies described below as
those }hat due to the judgments, estimates and assumptions inherent in those policies, are critical to an
undcrs‘;andlng of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and this Management’s Discussion and

Analysis

Insurance Reserves

The Company maintains loss reserves to cover its estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses, including legal and other fees, for reported and unreported claims incurred as of the end of each
accoun‘ting period. These loss reserves are based on actuarial assumptions and are maintained at levels that are
est1mated in accordance with GAAP. The Company’s estimate of loss reserves represents management’s best
estimate of the Company’s liability at the balance sheet date.

A‘ll of the Company’s policies are short-duration and are accounted for based on actuarial estimates of the
amount of loss inherent in that period’s claims or open claims from prior periods, including losses incurred for claims
that have not been reported (“IBNR”). Short-duration contract loss estimates rely on actuarial observations of
ultimate loss experience for similar historical events.

Management believes that the Company’s methods of estimating the liabilities for insurance reserves provided
appropriate levels of reserves at December 31, 2005. Changes in the Company’s reserve estimates are recorded

through a charge or credit to its earnings.

Medical Stop-Loss

|

The Company’s Medical Stop-Loss business is comprised of Employer Stop-Loss, HMO Reinsurance and
Provider Excess. All of the Company’s Medical Stop-Loss policies are short-duration and are accounted for based
on actuarial estimates of the amount of loss inherent in that period’s claims or open claims from prior periods,
including losses incurred for claims that have not been reported (“IBNR”). Short-duration contract loss estimates
rely on actuarial observations of ultimate loss experience for similar historical events.

22




The two “primary” or “key” assumptions undeflying the calculation of loss reserves for Medical Stop-Loss
business are (i) projected net loss ratio, and (ii) claim development patterns. The projected net loss ratio is set at
expected levels consistent with the underlying pricing assumptions (*“Projected Net Loss Ratio”). Claim develop-
ment patterns are set quarterly as reserve estimates are developed and are based on recent claim development
history (“Claim Development Patterns”). The Company uses the Projected Net Loss Ratio to establish reserves
until developing losses provide a better indication of ultimate results and it is feasible to set reserves based on Claim
Development Patterns. The Company has concluded that a reasonably likely change in the Projected Net Loss
Ratio assumption could have a material effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, or
liquidity (“Material Effect”) but a reasonably likely change in the Claim Development Pattern would not have a
Material Effect.

Projected Net Loss Ratio

Generally, during the first twelve months of an underwriting year, reserves for Medical Stop-Loss are first set at
the Projected Net Loss Ratio, which is set using pricing assumptions developed using completed prior experience
trended forward. The Projected Net Loss Ratio is the Company’s best estimate of future performance until such
time as developing losses provide a better indication of ultimate results.

While the Company establishes a best estimate of the Projected Net Loss Ratio, actual experience may deviate
from this estimate. While the Company believes that larger variations are possible (as is the case with the 2004
underwriting year which deviated by 10 loss ratio points), based on a review of historical net loss ratios experienced
by the Company, the reasonably likely deviation from the expected loss ratio was between three and five loss ratio
points. Therefore, based on its experience to date, it was reasonably likely that the actual experience will fall within a
range up to five loss ratio points above or below the expected pricing loss ratio. The impact of these reasonably likely
changes at December 31, 2005, would be an increase in net reserves (in the case of a higher ratio) or a decrease in
net reserves (in the case of a lower ratio) of up to approximately $1.1 million with a corresponding increase or
decrease in the pre-tax expense for insurance benefits, claims and reserves in the 2005 Consolidated Statement of
Operations.

Major factors that affect the Projected Net Loss Ratlo assumption in reserving for Medical Stop-Loss relate to:
(i) frequency and severity of claims; (ii) changes in medical trend resulting from the influences of underlying cost
inflation, changes in utilization and demand for medical services, the impact of new medical technology and changes
in medical treatment protocols; and (iii) the adherence by the MGUs that produce and administer this business to
the Company’s underwriting guidelines. Changes in these underlying factors are what determine the reasonably
likely changes in the Projected Net Loss Ratio as discussed above.

Claim Development Patterns

Subsequent to the first twelve months of an underwriting year, the Company’s developing losses provide a
better indication of ultimate losses. At this point, claims have developed to a level where Claim Development
Patterns can be applied to generate reasonably reliable estimates of ultimate claim levels. Development factors
based on historical patterns are applied to paid and reported claims to estimate fully developed claims. Claim
Development Patterns are reviewed quarterly as reserve estimates are developed and are based on recent claim
development history. The Company must determine whether changes in development represent true indications of
emerging experience or are simply due to random claim fluctuations.

The Company also establishes its best estimates of claim development factors to be applied to more developed
treaty year experience. While these factors are based on historical Claim Development Patterns, actual claim
development may vary from these estimates. The Company does not believe that reasonably likely changes in its
actual claim development patterns would have a Material Effect.

Predicting ultimate claims and estimating reserves in Medical Stop-Loss is more complex than first dollar
medical and disability business due to the “excess of loss” nature of these products with very high deductibles
applying to specific claims on any individual claimant and in the aggregate for a given group. The level of these
deductibles makes it more difficult to predict the amount and payment pattern of such claims. Fluctuations in
results for specific coverage are primarily due to the severity and frequency of individual claims, whereas
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ﬁuctuatiPns in aggregate coverage are largely attributable to frequency of underlying claims rather than severity.
Liabilities for first dollar medical reserves and disability coverages are computed using completion factors and

expected loss ratios derived from actual historical premium and claim data.

Due to the short-term nature of Medical Stop-Loss, redundancies or deficiencies will typically emerge during
the cour‘se of the following year rather than over a number of years. For Employer Stop-Loss, as noted above, the
Company maintains its reserves based on underlying pricing assumptions until it determines that an adjustment is
appropnlate based on emerging experience from its MGUs for prior underwriting years. Reserves for HMO
Reinsurance and Provider Excess are adjusted on a policy by policy basis. Because of the small number of HMO
Relnsurénce and Provider Excess policies it writes, the Company is able to evaluate each policy individually for
potent1a1 liability by reviewing open claims with each HMO or provider group and applying completion factors using

hxstorlcal data.

Fully Insured

Reserves for first dollar medical and dental business are established using historical claim development
pattemsi. Claim development by number of months elapsed from the incurred month is studied each month and
development factors are calculated. These claim development factors are then applied to the amount of claims paid
to date for each incurred month to estimate fully complete claims. The difference between fully complete claims
and the‘ claims paid to date is the estimated reserve. Total reserves are the sum of the reserves for all incurred

months.|

The primary assumption in the determination of fully insured reserves is that historical claim development
patterns, are representative of future claim development patterns. Factors which may affect this assumption include
changes)in claim payment processing times and procedures, changes in time delay in submission of claims and the
incidence of unusually large claims. The reserving analysis includes a review of claim processing statistical measures
and 1arée claim early notifications; the potential impact of any changes in these factors are minimal. The time delay
in submlssmn of claims tends to be stable over time and not subject to significant volatility. The Company does not

believe that any reasonably likely change in these factors will have a Material Effect.

\
Premium and MGU Fee Income Revenue Recognition

Direct and assumed premiums from short-duration contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the
contracts in proportion to the amount of insurance protection provided. The Company records MGU fee income as
policy premium payments are earned. MGUs are compensated in two ways. They earn fee income based on the
volume of business produced, and collect profit-sharing commissions if such business exceeds certain profitability
benchm‘arks. Profit-sharing commissions are accounted for beginning in the period in which the Company believes
they are reasonably estimable, which is typically at the point that claims have developed to a level where Claim

Development Patterns can be applied to generate reasonably reliable estimates of ultimate claim levels.

Reinsurance

Independence American is primarily a reinsurer, and currently derives most of its business from pro rata quota
share reinsurance treaties with Standard Security Life and Madison National Life which are wholly-owned
subsidia}ries of THC. These treaties were entered into in 2002 and terminate on December 31, 2014, unless
tcrmina:tcd sooner by Independence American. Standard Security Life and Madison National Life must cede at
least 15% of their Medical Stop-Loss business to Independence American under these treaties. Additionally,
Standar"d Security Life, Madison National Life and Independence American have received regulatory approval to
cede up to 30% to Independence American under most of IHC’s Medical Stop-Loss programs. For the twelve
months|/ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, Standard Security Life and Madison National Life ceded an average of
21.9% and 19.3%, respectively, of their Medical Stop-Loss business to Independence American. Commencing in
July 2004, Independence American began reinsuring 20% of Standard Security Life’s short-term statutory disability
benefit product (“DBL”) business. In 2005, Standard Security Life and Madison National Life began ceding 10%
of employer-sponsored group major medical, and 10% of its individual short-term medical products (“STM”) to

Independence American.
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[HC provides the Company with pro rata quota share reinsurance on business written by Independence
American. This business accounted for approximately 1% of the Company’s total earned premiums at December 31,
2005. Commencing in January 2004, Independence; American began ceding 30% of its provider excess insurance to
Madison National Life. In January 2003, Indepéndence American increased the amount ceded to Madison
National Life to 55%. This treaty was entered into on January 1, 2004 and will remain in force for an indefinite
period, unless terminated by either party as of any December 31. The Company is not aware of any regulatory or
other restrictions on the ability of IHC to fund its obligations under agreements in which IHC reinsures such
provider excess business. Any such restrictions would at this point have a minimal impact on the Company.

Income Taxes

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers. whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the period in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable:
income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Management believes that although sufficient
uncertainty exists regarding the future realization of deferred tax assets, the valuation allowance has been adjusted
to account for the expected utilization of net operating losses against future taxable income.

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards for federal income tax purposes available to reduce future
income subject to income taxes. The net operating loss carryforwards expire between 2019 and 2024.

U.S. federal and California tax laws impose substantial restrictions on the utilization of net operating loss and
credit carryforwards in the event of an “ownership change” for tax purposes, as defined in Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code. For tax purposes, an ownership change occurred during 1999 and, as a result, utilization of
the net operating losses arising prior to 1999 will b§ subject to an annual limitation in future years.

Investments

The Company accounts for its investments in debt and equity securities under SFAS No. 115 (“SFAS 1157),
Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. The Company has classified all of its
investments as available-for-sale or trading securities. These investments are carried at fair value based on quoted
market prices with unrealized gains and losses reported in either accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets for available-for-sale securities or as unrealized gains or losses in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations for trading securities. Net realized gains and losses on investments are computed using the
specific identification method and are reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary are determined based on the specific identification method
and are reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as net realized losses. The factors considered by
management in determining when a decline is other than temporary include but are not limited to: the length of
time and extent to which the fair value has been less than cost; the financial condition and near-term prospects of
the issuer; adverse changes in ratings announced by one or more rating agencies; whether the issuer of a debt
security has remained current on principal and interest payments; whether the decline in fair value appears to be
issuer specific or, alternatively, a reflection of general market or industry conditions; and the Company’s intent and
ability to hold the security for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in fair value. For securities within the
scope of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 99-20, such as purchased interest-only securities, an impairment loss is
recognized when there has been a decrease in expected cash flows combined with a decline in the security’s fair
value below cost. 1

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives, which consist of licenses, are not amortized but are tested
for impairment, on a reporting unit basis, at the end of the third quarter of each fiscal year, or more frequently if
indicators arise. The Company defines its reporting units on a segment basis.
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The Company’s other intangible assets consisting of broker/third party relationships are amortized over five
years.

Discontinued Operations

The Company accounts for discontinued operations in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 30 (“APB 30”), Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions. Under APB 30, the
Company accrued estimates of expected liabilities related to discontinued operations through its eventual discharge.
The estimated remaining liabilities related to discontinued operations include contract terminations, litigation and
loss from $perations subsequent to September 30, 2002. The Company reviews the estimated closure costs liability
on a quart‘erly basis to determine changes in the costs of the discontinued operations activities. The cash flows used
in discontinued operations are presented separately in the operating activities section of the statement of cash flows;
there were no cash flows associated with investing and financing activities for the years presented for discontinued
operations

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2005, Compared to the Fiscal Year Ended
December|31, 2004 :

Premiums Farned. Premiums earned increased $5,915,000 to $66,118,000 for fiscal 2005, compared to
$60,203,000 for fiscal 2004, an increase of 10%. The Company currently reinsures three lines of business from
Independence Holding Company (“IHC”). Total premiums relating to medical stop-loss were $57,732,000 and
$57,998, 000 for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Premiums relating to DBL were
$4,187, 000 and $2, 205,000 for 2005 and 2004, respectively. IAIC began reinsuring 20% of IHC’s DBL business
effective Jluly 1, 2004. Premiums relating to small group major medical were $4,019,000 and $0 for 2005 and 2004,
respectively. JAIC began reinsuring 10% of IHC’s small group medical business effective January 1, 2005,
Independence American generated $180,000 of short-term medical premiums in 2005, which was the first year in

which it erote such business.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income increased $210,000 to $2,501,000 for fiscal 2003, compared
to $2,291 000 for fiscal 2004, due to a higher invested asset base in 2003, partially offset by a shghtly lower return on
1nvestments The return on investments of the Company was 4.76% in fiscal 2005 and 5.15% in fiscal 2004.

Net Realzzea’ Gains. Net realized gains increased $23,000 to $245,000 for fiscal 2005, compared to $222,000
for fiscal 2004. The Company’s decision as to whether to sell securities is based on cash flow needs, investment
opportunities, and economic market conditions, thus creating fluctuations in realized gains or losses from period to
period.

MGU Fee Income. The Company earned $14,156,000 of fee income from its MGUs for fiscal 2005 as
compared {to $17,597,000 for fiscal 2004, a decrease of $3,441,000. The reduction in fee income is due to lower
volume of |premiums written and lower profit commissions. Included in fee income is $1,872,000 and $2,749,000 of
MGU profit commissions in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Profit commissions for a given year are based primarily on
the performance of business written during portions of the two preceding years. Therefore, profit commissions for
2006 will be based on business written during portions of 2004 and 2005. Since certain of the MGUs experienced
higher loss ratios in those years, profit commissions for the 2006 fiscal year and future years may be adversely
affected.

Insurance Benefits, Claims and Reserves. Insurance benefits, claims and reserves amounted to $44,722,000
for fiscal 2005 as compared to $39,173,000 for fiscal 2004, an increase of $5,549,000 or 14%. The increase is mainly
due to adhitional claims relating to increased earned premium volume from Independence American in 2005.
Additionally, 2005 was negatively impacted by. higher than expected claims from certain of Independence
American’is 2004 and 2005 Medical Stop-Loss programs. The Company recorded an overall Net Loss Ratio of

95.1% in 2005 versus 90.9% in 2004. Insurance benefits, claims and reserves for 2005 includes a charge of $305,000
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to reflect loss development from prior treaty years and a corresponding increase in reserves for the current treaty
year. While management sets reserves based on its best estimate of ultimate claim settlement cost, the Company
adjusts reserves as claims mature, approach settlement or are otherwise resolved.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general, and administrative expenses increased $1,793,000 to
$30,965,000 for fiscal 2005, compared to $29,172,000 for fiscal 2004. The increase is primarily due to commission
expense recorded by Independence American. Commission expense for Independence American increased
$1,801,000 to $19,954,000 for fiscal 2005, compared to $18,153,000 for fiscal 2004.

Amortization and Depreciation. Amortization and depreciation expense decreased $566,000 to $1,100,000 for
fiscal 2005, compared to $1,666,000 for fiscal 2004. The expense primarily relates to the amortization of the
intangible assets for the value of broker/TPA relationships of the MGUs. These intangible assets were acquired as
part of acquisitions made by the Company. Amortization expense for these intangible assets will decline over the
useful lives of the assets.

Non-Cash Compensation Expense Related to Stock Options. The Company recognized non-cash compensa-
tion expense related to stock options of $227,000 for fiscal 2005. This expense relates to the fair value of options
issued and accounted for under SFAS No. 123. The expense for fiscal 2004 was $456,000. The lower expense is
primarily due to a lower amount of options issued in more recent years.

Restructuring Expense. The Company recognized no restructuring expense for fiscal 2005 and no related
expense for fiscal 2004. The Company reversed the remaining reserve of $67,000 related to the restructuring during
fiscal 2005. At December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, a restructuring accrual of $0 and $300,000, respectively,
remained outstanding.

Minority Interest. The Company recorded $5%14,000 for fiscal 2005 and $678,000 for fiscal 2004 of expense
related to the 20% minority interest in Marlton. This reduction is due to lower income earned by Marlton.

Income Taxes. The income tax expense was $120,000 for fiscal 2005 as compared to a tax expense of
$3,569,000 for fiscal 2004, a decrease of $3,449,000. In 2005, the Company further reduced the valuation allowance
by $2.079,000 relating to the deferred tax asset, which caused a corresponding increase in such deferred tax asset.
The valuation allowance relates to the probability that AMIC might not be able to fully utilize its prior tax year
federal net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”). AMIC reviews the valuation allowance quarterly to determine
the reasonableness of the amount, and previously reduced it in connection with the Company’s acquisitions in 2002,
2003 and 2004. Based upon AMIC's profitability .in 2005 and projected continuing profitable results, it was
management’s view that it was appropriate to furthe‘r reduce the valuation allowance in the fourth quarter of 2005
which resulted in an increase in net income and i mcome from continuing operations. There was no such adjustment
in 2004.

Gain/Loss _on Discontinued Operations. Loss on discontinued operations was $59,000 for fiscal 2005,
compared to a gain of $240,000 for fiscal 2004, a decrease of $299,000. The loss in 2005 is primarily due to the re-
estimation of lease expenses related to Intellicom, a discontinued operation. The gain in 2004 is primarily
attributable to lower than expected expenses related to Intellicom, MTC, ISP Channel and KCI.

Net Income. The Compahy had net income of $5,460,000 or $.64 per share diluted, for fiscal 2005, compared
to net income of $5,904,000 or $.69 per share diluted, for fiscal year 2004.

Results of Operations for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004, Compared to the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2003

Premiums Farned. Premiums earned incrcased $22,386,000 to $60,203,000 for the fiscal 2004, compared to
$37,817,000 for fiscal 2003, an increase of 59.2%. This is primarily due to a combination of a higher percentage of
Medical Stop-Loss business assumed from, as well as increased volume of business written by IHC in 2004. The
average percentage of Medical Stop-Loss business ceded from IHC to Independence American for fiscal years 2004
and 2003 was 19.3% and 13.1%, respectively. Begmnmg in the 2004 third quarter, IHC also ceded 20% of its DBL
premlums to Independence American.
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Net Investment Income. Net investment income increased $324,000 to $2,291,000 for fiscal 2004, compared
to $1,967,q00 for fiscal 2003, due to a higher invested asset base in 2004, offset by a slightly lower return on
investments. The return on investments of the Company was 5.15% in fiscal 2004 and 5.58% in fiscal 2003.

Net Realized Gains. Net realized gains decreased $108,000 to $222,000 for fiscal 2004, compared to $330,000
for fiscal 2003. The Company’s decision as to whether to sell securities is based on cash flow needs, investment
opportuniti“cs, and economic market conditions, thus creating fluctuations in realized gains or losses from period to
period. Offsetting net realized gains for fiscal 2004 is a realized loss of $134,000 from unrealized losses on securities
that the Ccr)mpany deemed to be other than temporary in nature. For fiscal 2003, there was no realized loss from

unrealized flosses on securities that the Company deemed to be other than temporary in nature.

MGU} Fee Income. The Company earned $17,597,000 of fee income from its MGUs for fiscal 2004 as
compared Jto $15,427,000 for fiscal 2003, an increase of $2,170,000. Included in fee income is $2,749,000 and
$2,619,00q of MGU profit commissions in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Profit commissions for a given year are
typically b"ased on the performance of business written during portions of the two preceding years. Therefore, profit
commissions for 2005 will be based on business written during portions of 2003 and 2004. Since certain of the
MGUs experienced higher loss ratios in those years, profit commissions for the 2005 fiscal year and future years may

be adversely affected.

Insurance Benefits, Claims and Reserves. Insurance benefits, claims and reserves amounted to $39;173,000
for fiscal 2004 as compared to $23,312,000 for fiscal 2003, an increase of $15,861,000, or 68%. The increase is
mainly due to additional claims relating to increased earned premium volume from Independence American in
2004. Additionally, 2004 was negatively impacted by higher than expected claims from certain of Independence
American’ls 2003 Medical Stop-Loss programs. The Company recorded a Net Loss Ratio of 90.9% in 2004 versus
85.2% in 2003 on its Medical Stop-Loss line of business. Insurance benefits, claims and reserves for 2004 includes a
charge of $1,730,000 to reflect loss development from prior treaty years and a corresponding increase in reserves for
the curren}t treaty year. While management sets reserves based on its best estimate of ultimate claim settlement

cost, the C;ompany adjusts reserves as claims mature, approach settlement or are otherwise resolved.

Sellin‘g, General and Administrative. Selling, general, and administrative expenses increased $9,448,000 to
$29,172,0Q0 for fiscal 2004, compared to $19,724,000 for fiscal 2003. The increase is primarily due to commission
expense recorded by Independence American and operating expenses from the MGUs. Selling, general, and
administrative expenses for the MGUs were $8,629,000 and commission expense for Independence American was
$18,152,000 for fiscal 2004. Selling, general, and administrative expenses for MGUs, were $10,732,000 and

commission expense for Independence American was $8,902,000 for fiscal 2003.

Amortization and Depreciation. Amortization and depreciation expense decreased $345,000 to $1,666,000 for
fiscal 2004, compared to $2,011,000 for fiscal 2003. The expense primarily relates to the amortization of the
intangible|assets for the value of broker/ TPA relationships of the MGUs. These intangible assets were acquired as
part of acquisitions made by the Company. Amortization expense for these intangible assets will decline over the
useful lives of the assets. o o

Non-Cash Compensation Expense Related to Stock Options. The Company recognized non-cash compensa-
tion exper“lse related to stock options of $456,000 for fiscal 2004. This expense relates to the fair value of options
issued and accounted for under SFAS No. 123. The expense for fiscal 2003 was $141,000.

Restructuring Expense. The Company recognized an expense of $152,000 for fiscal 2003 and no related
expense for fiscal 2004. At December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, a restructuring accrual of $300,000 and
$866,000, respectively, remained outstanding. '

Minority Interest. The Company recorded $678,000 for fiscal 2004 and $645,000 for fiscal 2003 of expense
related to the 20% minority interest in Marlton.

Income Taxes. The income tax expense was $3,569,000 for fiscal 2004 as compared to a tax benefit of
$2,993,00p for fiscal 2003, an increase of $6,562,000. In 2003, the Company further reduced the valuation allowance
relating to the deferred tax asset, which caused a corresponding increase in such deferred tax asset. The valuation

allowance relates to the possibility that AMIC might not be able to fully utilize its prior tax year federal net
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operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”). AMIC reviews the valuation allowance quarterly to determine the
reasonableness of the amount, and previously reduced it in- connection with the Company’s acquisitions in 2002,
2003 and 2004. Based upon AMIC’s profitability in 2003 and projected continuing profitable results, it was
management’s view that it was appropriate to further reduce the valuation allowance in the fourth quarter of 2003
which resulted in an increase in net income and i 1ncome from contmumg operatlons There was no such adjustment
in 2004. ‘

Gain on Discontinued Operations. Gain on discontinued operations was $240,000 for fiscal 2004, compared to
a gain of $110,000 for fiscal 2003, an’ increase of $130,000. The gain in 2004 is primarily attributable to lower than
expected expenses related to Intellicom, MTC, ISP Channel and KCI.

Net Income. The Company had net income of $5,904,000, or $.69 diluted per share, for fiscal 2004, compared
to net income of $12,671,000, or $1.50 per share diluted, for fiscal year 2003.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Independence American @

Independence American principally derives cash flow from: (i) operations; (ii) the receipt of scheduled
principal payments on its portfolio of fixed income securities; and (iii) earnings on investments. Such cash flow is
partially used to finance liabilities for insurance policy benefits and reinsurance obligations.

Independence American maintains a revolving Letter of Credit (“LOC”) with a financial institution to support
reinsurance obligations of Independence American in the ordinary course of business. The LOC has an outstanding
face amount up to $5,000,000 although Independence American has not drawn upon funds to date. The LOC
renews October 15 of each year, unless cancelled by Independence American.

Corporate . & ‘

Corporate derives cash flow funds principally" from: dividends and tax payments from its subsidiaries and
investment income from corporate liquidity. There are no regulatory constraints on the MGUSs’ ability to dividend to
the parent company, however, state insurance laws have provisions relating to the ability of the parent company to
use cash generated by Independence American.

Cash Flows

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had $55 720,000 in cash, cash equivalents, and investments, net of
amounts due to/from brokers compared with $47,499,000 as of December 31, 2004.

Net cash provided by operating activities of contmumg operatrons for the ﬁscal year ended December 31, 2005
was $8,928,000. Net cash flows benefited from premrum volume and fees from MGUS, partially offset by higher
than expected claims and losses.

Net cash used by investing activities of continﬁing operations for fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 was
$4,896,000. This use of cash results from purchases of fixed matuntles equity securities, and short-term
investments, net of sales of all such securities. f

Net cash provided by financing activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 was $95,000, resulting

from the exercise of common stock options. l

At December 31, 2005, the Company had $16,296,000 of restricted cash at the MGUs. The amount at the
MGUs is directly offset by corresponding liabilities for Premium and Claim Funds Payable of $16,296,000. This
asset, in part, represents the premium that is remitted by the insureds and is collected by the MGUs on behalf of the
insurance carriers they represent. Each month the premium is remitted to the insurance carriers by the MGUs.
Until such remittance is made the collected premium is carried as an asset on the balance sheet of each MGU with
a corresponding payable to each insurance carrier. In'addition to the premium being held at the MGUs, the MGUs
are in possession of cash to pay claims “Claim Funds”. The cash is deposited by each insurance carrier in to a bank
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account that the MGUSs can access. The cash is used by the MGUSs to pay claims on behalf of the insurance carriers
they repres‘ent. The availability of cash enables the MGUs to reimburse claims in a timely manner.

The CPmpany has $20.9 million of insurance reserves that it expects to pay out of current assets and cash flows
from future business. If necessary, the Company could sell its fixed maturity investments if the timing of claim

| . . L .
payments associated with our insurance resources does not coincide with future cash flows.

The dompany believes it has sufficient cash to meet its currently anticipated business requirements over the

next twelve months including the funding of discontinued operations, working capital requirements, and capital
investments. The Company expects continued cash usage for its discontinued operations, which are primarily lease

obligationsl for the year ending December 31, 2006.

Asset Quality

|

The n}ature and quality of insurance company investments must comply with all applicable insurance statutes
and regulations which have been promulgated primarily for the protection of policyholders. Of the aggregate

carrying value of the Company’s investment assets, approximately 92% was invested in investment grade fixed

income seéurities, resale agreements, and cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2005. Also at such date, 97%

of the Con"lpany’s fixed maturities were investment grade. These investments carry less default risk and, therefore,

lower intcr‘est rates than other types of fixed maturity investments. At December 31, 2005, 3% of the carrying value
of fixed maturmes was invested in diversified non-investment grade fixed income securities. Investments in such
securities have different risks than investment grade securities, including greater risk of loss upon default, and

thinner tra}dmg markets. The Company does not have any non-performing fixed maturities.

The c’omposition of the Cémpany’s fixed maturities at December 31, 2005, utilizing Standard and Poor’s rating
categories,| was as follows:

Grade % Invested
A A A 53%
A A e 2%
A 22%
BB | . e 20%
BB Or LOWET . .o _ 3%

100%

Investment Impairments

The Company reviews its investments regularly and monitors its investments continually for impairments. For
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded a realized loss for other than temporary
impairments of $0 and $134,000 respectively. The Company’s gross unrealized losses on fixed maturities totaled
$1,017, 000 and $500,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004 respectively. Substantially all of these securities were

1nvestmen}t grade. The unrealized losses have been evaluated in accordance with the Company’s policy and were

detcrminc“d to be temporary in nature at December 31, 2005. The Company holds all fixed maturities as available-
for-sale and accordingly marks all of its securities to market through accumulated other comprehensive income

(loss). |

Balance Sheet

Totalr investments increased $4,012,000 to $48,481,000 at December 31, 2005 from $44,469,000 at Decem-
ber 31, 2094 due to the net growth in the business. The $5,003,000 increase in total stockholders’ equity is primarily
due to net income of $5,460,000 generated during fiscal 2005 which includes an adjustment to the deferred tax asset
valuation allowance of $2,079,000.
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The Company had receivables from reinsurcfs of $11,707,000 at December 31, 2005. Substantially all of the

business ceded to such reinsurers is of short duration. All of such receivables are either due from related parties,

highly rated companies or are adequately secured No allowance for doubtful accounts was deemed necessary at
December 31, 2005.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Due to its strong capital ratio and excellent asset quality and credit-worthiness, the Company remains well
positioned to increase or diversify its current activities. It is anticipated that future acquisitions or other expansion of
operations will be funded internally from existing’capital and surplus and parent company liquidity. In the event
additional funds are required, it is expected that they would be borrowed or raised in the public or private capital
markets to the extent determined to be necessary or desirable.

In accordance with SFAS No. 115, the Company may carry its portfolio of fixed income securities either as
held to maturity (carried at amortized cost), as trading securities (carried at fair value) or as available-for-sale
(carried at fair value). The Company has chosen to carry all of its debt securities as available-for-sale. The
Company experienced a change in net unrealized loss of $779,000 reflecting a net unrealized loss of $1,064,000 at
December 31, 2005 from a net unrealized loss of $285,000 at December 31, 2004. From time to time, as warranted,
the Company employs investment strategies to mitigate interest rate and other market exposures.

The Company enters into a variety of contractual obligations with third-parties in the ordinary course of its
operations. These obligations, as of December 31, 2005, are set forth in the table below. Insurance reserves all
represent short-tail business. However, we do not believe that our cash flow requirements can be fully assessed based
upon an analysis of these obligations. Future cash outflows, whether they are contractual obligations or not, also will
vary based upon our future needs. Although some outﬁows are fixed, others depend on future events. The Company
has expected contractual obligations relating to non -cancelable leases and insurance reserves of the following at
December 31, 2005 (in thousands): ‘

Operating  Insurance

Year Ending December 31, Lease Reserves
2000 .. TP $ 624 $20,882
2007 .t e 589 —
2008 .. S P 478 —
2009 . ............................... 219 —
2010 L P 107 —
2011 and thereafter.................... e e e — —

Total . ... . o P P $2,017 $20,882

Under certain circumstances set forth in the Limited Liability Company Agreements of Marlton and Majestic,
the Company has the right and/or obligation to purchase some or all of the minority interests in Marlton and
Majestic.

OUTLOOK

Independence American

Independence American, which is domiciled in Delaware, is licensed to write property and/or casualty
insurance in 36 states and the District of Columbia, and has a B++ (Very Good) rating from A.M. Best Company,
Inc. (“A.M. Best”). An A.M. Best rating is assigned after an extensive quantitative and qualitative evaluation of a
company’s financial condition and operating performance, and is also based upon factors relevant to policyholders,
agents, and intermediaries, and is not directed towards protection of investors. A.M. Best ratings are not
recommendations to buy, sell or hold securities of the Company.
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Independence American is primarily a reinsurer, and currently derives most of its business from pro rata quota
share Medi(cal Stop-Loss reinsurance treaties (the “IHC Treaties”) with Standard Security Life and Madison
National Life, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Independence Holding Company (“IHC”}. IHC owns 48%
of the Com{pany’s common stock. The IHC Treaties were entered into in 2002 and terminate on December 31,
2014, unlest terminated sooner by Independence American. There are three factors that determine the amount of
premiums assumed by Independence American: (i) the percentage of business ceded to Independence American
pursuant to|the IHC Treaties or otherwise; (ii) the amount of gross premium produced by the MGU Subsidiaries
and other distribution sources written by Standard Security Life or Madison National Life that is ceded to
Independen‘/ce American under the [HC Treaties; and (iii) the amount of gross premium produced by the MGU
Subsidiaries and other distribution sources written by carriers other than Standard Security Life or Madison

National L[ife that is ceded to Independence American.

|
IHC Treaties

|
With rJespect to the IHC Treaties, the Company’s operating results are affected by the following factors: (i) the
percentage [of business ceded to Independence American pursuant to the IHC Treaties; (ii) the amount of gross
premium written by Standard Security Life and Madison National Life that can be ceded pursuant to the IHC
Treaties; and (iii) the profitability of the business ceded.

|

Percentage of Business Ceded

With ‘respect to Medical Stop-Loss, IHC has agreed to cede a minimum of 15% of its Medical Stop-Loss
business to Independence American, and IHC has increased this percentage each year since inception of the IHC
Treaties. S“tandard Security Life, Madison National Life and Independence American have received regulatory
approval for Standard Security Life and Madison National Life to cede up to 30% to Independence American under
most of IHC’s Medical Stop-Loss programs. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2005 and December 30,
2004, Standard Security Life and Madison National Life ceded an average of 21.9% and 19.3%, respectively, of their
Medical Stop-Loss business to Independence American. This increase in ceding percentage was offset by a decrease
in gross Medical Stop-Loss business written by IHC (including business written by the MGU Subsidiaries and
otherwise) |resulting in a small decrease in premiums earned by Independence American. In 2005 and beyond, any
increase in‘ the percentage of Medical Stop-Loss ceded to Independence American will depend on how much IHC
determines it has available to reinsure and Independence American’s desire to increase the percentage. Since the
percentage‘ being ceded is now well in excess of the contractual minimum, there is no guaranty that IHC will
continue tﬂ’ increase the percentage of business ceded to Independence American or, in fact, cede in excess of 15%.
However, the AMIC MGUs are the largest producers of Medical Stop-Loss business for IHC, controlling a

majority of this premium in 2005.

Commencing in July 2004, Independence American began reinsuring 20% of Standard Security Life’s short-
term statutory disability benefit product (“DBL”). Standard Security Life is not contractually obligated to continue
to cede this business to Independence American after termination of the current treaty year. In 2005, Standard

Security Life and Madison National Life began ceding 10% of consumer-driven group major medical (“CDHP”)

business, and 10% of their individual short-term medical products (“STM”) to Independence American. Standard
Security Life and Madison National Life are not contractually obligated to continue to cede this business to
Independence American after termination of the current treaty years. The Company does not expect the percentage

.| . . .
ceded to it from IHC will change significantly in the next twelve months.

|

Upon renewal of each of the programs underlying the IHC Treaties, Standard Security Life and Madison
National I;“ife determine the maximum percentage of risk to be offered to Independence American and Indepen-
dence American determines the percentage that it wishes to accept. A typical pro rata quota share reinsurance
treaty is for a twelve month period in which the ceding company and the reinsurer share the premiums as well as the
losses and‘[ expenses in an agreed proportion for all policies written with an effective date within this period. Most
treaties run from January 1 to December 31, but others could begin and end in other periods. Therefore the
percentage ceded could change as the year progresses. If Independence American, Standard Security Life, and
Madison National Life had agreed to increase the average percentage ceded to Independence American by 1%

(from the 21.9% ceded for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005) and Standard Security Life’s and Madison
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National Life’s gross written premium had remamed unchanged, Independence American’s premium would have
increased by approximately $2.2 million, which i is approximately 3.3% of total net premiums earned for the year
ended December 31, 2005. That increase in premium, however, would not have flowed directly to pre-tax operating
income because of corresponding changes in msurance benefits, claims and reserves and other expenses attributable
to the increase in premiums.

’ Amount,of Gross Premiums Written

The gross Medical Stop-Loss premiums written by IHC decreased in 2005 by 13%, and such premiums written
by the AMIC MGUs decreased by 24% in 2005, as a result of writing and/or renewing fewer policies due to
competitors’ willingness to write business at profit margins lower than those acceptable to the Company, partially
offset by increased rates on the policies retained.! This resulted in a decrease in the gross amount of premium
available to be ceded to Independence American.! THC has announced that it has added additional distribution
sources for 2006, which could increase its gross premlums written. The AMIC MGUs do not anticipate materially
increasing their production of Medical Stop-Loss business in 2006, IHC has reported that it expects its gross DBL
premiums to be relatively stable in 2006, however, it expects significant growth in its STM and CDHP premiums in
2006. |

Profitability

The Medical Stop-Loss market is generally cyclical in nature. When a product experiences several consecutive
years of underwriting profitability, it is not unusual for there to be more competitors entering that line which can
increase pressure on pricing and create a “softer” market. The Medical Stop-Loss market began to “soften” in 2003
and less favorable conditions continued through 2004and 2005. As a result of these market conditions, the rate that
the carriers that cede business to the Company were able to charge for Medical Stop-Loss increased at a lesser rate
in recent years, however, increases in medical trend have also been held in check to a greater extent and deductibles
and attachment points have increased. This reduces the risk taker’s overall risk exposure. Despite these market
conditions, the Company produced significantly profitable results in 2003 and 2004 and marginally profitable results
in 2005, and expects improved profitability in 2006. Fully-insured business, including the STM and CDHP lines,
tends to be less volatile and less cyclical than excess insurance.

Therefore, the impact on the Company’s opcratirig results relating to the THC Treaties can be summarized as
follows: (i) assuming continuing profitability of the underlying business, the Company’s results would be positively
impacted if THC were to cede a higher percentage and adversely affected if THC were to cede less;
(ii) Independence American’s income would be negatively impacted if IHC’s gross premium were to decrease, and
(iii) Independence American’s income in future years would be positively affected if IHC were to produce higher
profit margins, and negatively impacted if loss ratios increase.

Marketing Agreement

In February 2006, Independence American entered into an agreement with a marketing organization with a
growing block of fully-insured health business, mcludmg Consumer Driven Health Plans (CDHPs) primarily sold
to small employer groups, and Medical Stop-Loss to begin writing for Independence American. The organization
that produces this business will immediately begin writing Employer Medical Stop-Loss through Independence
American, and will move the majority of its existing block of fully-insured and stop-loss health insurance (currently
approximately $35 million) to Independence American: in January 2007, with the balance moving by the end of
2007. This block, which is expected to have meaningful growth, has averaged 8% risk profit over the past five years,
although there is no guaranty that such results will be maintained. Independence American will be the exclusive
issuing carrier for business underwritten by this orgamzatlon through December 31, 2011. Subject to certain
conditions, the agreement will automatically extend untxl December 31, 2016, and this organization could be
entitled to additional cash consideration (see Note 21 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Risk Manag’ement

The Co’mpany manages interest rate risk by seeking to maintain a portfolio with a duration and average life that
falls within the band of the duration and average life of the applicable liabilities. Options may be utilized to modify
the duratiorl and average life of such assets; see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The fol{lowing summarizes the estimated pre-tax change in fair value (based upon hypothetical parallel shifts in
the U.S. Treasury yield curve) of the fixed income portfolio assuming immediate changes in interest rates at
specified levels at December 31, 2005:

Estimated

Estimated Change In

Change I in Interest Rates Fair Value Fair Value

[' (In thousands)

200 b?sis PO FI8C . . vttt ettt e $36,050 $(4,394)
100 b(asis POINT TISE. . . . 38,232 (2,212)
Base SCEMATIO . ...t 40,444 —
100 blasis Point declifle. .. ...« oveerrereese e 42,612 2,168
200 basis point decline. ......... ... 44,848 4,404

The Company monitors its investment portfolio on a continuous basis and believes that the liquidity of the
Company|will not be adversely affected by its current investments.

In thrje Company’s analysis of the asset-liability model, a 100 to 200 basis point change in interest rates on the
Company’s liabilities would not be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company. With respect to its
investments, the Company employs (from time to time as warranted) investment strategies to mitigate interest rate

and other market exposures.

|
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Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
American Iﬁdependence Corp.

The management of American Independence Corp. (“AMIC"”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting. AMIC’s internal control system was designed to provide
reasonable (lclssurance to the Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements for external purposes in

accordance ;with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

All intg‘:rnal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation |and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policicsf or procedures may deteriorate.

Manag‘ement assessed the effectiveness of AMIC’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on our
assessment| we concluded that, as of December 31, 2005, AMIC’s internal control over financial reporting is
effective.

KPM‘G LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the financial statements in this
Annual Report, has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of,

AMIC’s injternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, which is included herein on page 37.
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Report of Independeni“t‘Registered Public: Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
American Independence Corp.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying “Report of Management on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting”, that American Independence Corp. and subsidiaries maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting aé of December 31, 2003, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis-
sion (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on .our audit‘ ‘

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assess-
ment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other
procedures as we consulered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

i

for our opinion. cod

A company’s internal control over financial reportmg is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or defect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that 1American Independence Corp. and subsidiaries maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOQ). Also, in our opinion, American Independence Corp. and
subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of American Independence Corp. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005, and our report dated March 13, 2006
expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

New York, New York , ‘
March 13, 2006 i




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board pf Directors and Stockholders
American Independence Corp.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of American Independence Corp. and
subsidia\riesJ as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005. In connection with
our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have also audited the financial statement schedules listed in
the accom(panying index. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules are the
rcsponsxblhty of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supponing the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement| presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of American Independence Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2005, in conformlty with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial
statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,

present féurly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) the effectiveness of American Independence Corp. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated
March 13, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of,
internal control over financial reporting.

{

/s/ KPMG LLP

New YQrk, New York
March 13, 2006
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American Inde‘peridence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consoliciated Balance Sheets

| ASSETS:
Investments:
Short-term investments, at amortized cost, Wthh approximates fair value .........
Fixed maturities, at fair value ............... e
Equity securities, at fair value ............... e
Other long term investments ................ e e

Total investments. . ..., e e e
Cash and cash equivalents .................. e e
Restricted cash ($15,643 and $13,146, respectlvely, restricted by related partles)

Accrued investment IMCOIMIE . . . ..ot ettt e e et e ettt e e et e
Premiums receivable ($2,203 and $2,110, respectlvely, due from related partles)

Net deferred tax asset . ..................... e e e
Due from reinsurers ($10,696 and $11,103, respectively, due from related parties) . .
Goodwill .. .. .. A ORI
Intangible assets. . .............0 ... ... ..., e »
Accrued fee income ($370 and $327, respectlvely, due from related parties) .......
Other assets ($11 and $0, respectively, due from related parties)............. e

Total SSELS. . vttt e S P

LIABILITIES AND? STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

LIABILITIES:
Insurance reserves ($17,897 and $18,566, respectlvcly, due to related parties) ......
Premium and claim funds payable ($15,643 and: $13 146, respectively, due to

related parties) .. . o e
Amount due to brokers.............. . ..., R
Commission payable ($1,898 and $1,695, respectively, due to related parties) ... ...
Accounts payable, accruals and other labilities. | ..............................
State income taxes payable . ... ........ ..l
Due to reinsurers ($1,304 and $0, respectlvely, due to related parties) ............
Restructuring accrual ... ... .. . e
Net liabilities associated with discontinued operanons ..........................

Total HAbIHES . . . oo oo oo e
Minority interest ’ ..............................

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY: |
Preferred stock, $0.10 par value, 1,000 shares des1gnated no shares issued and
OUSANAING . . .. oo

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 15,000,000 shares authorized; 9,180,695 shares
issued; 8,451,223 and 8,438,889 shares outstanding, respectively................
Additional paid-in capital ........... .. .
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ....... f ..............................
Treasury stock, at cost, 729,472 shares and 741, 806 shares, respectively ...........
Accumulated deficit . ... ...

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY .. .... TR
TOTAL LIABIILTIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY..................

See accompanying notes tp consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2005

2004

(In thousands, except share
data)

$ 5071 $ 8,29
40,444 34,006
1,884 1,042
1,082 1,125
48,481 44,469
7,176 3,236
16,296 16,602
533 438

2,389 2,307
13,751 13,491
11,707 13,496

- 24,154 24,154
726 1,535
2,833 3,328
1,686 1,339

$ 129,732 $ 124,395
$ 20882 $ 22,240
16,296 15,802
— 206

2,599 2,393
2,096 1,861
251 164
1,304 —

— 300

808 936
44,236 43,902
4,026 4,026

92 92
479,192 479,017
(1,064) (285)
(8,730) (8,877)
(388,020)  (393,480)
81,470 76,467

$ 129,732 $ 124,395




American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share
data)
REVENUIFS:
Premiun}s earned ($55,536, $49,082 and $28,146, respectively, from related
parties{) ......................................................... $66,118  $60,203  $37,817
MGU fc;e income ($10,582, $12,772 and $9,953, respectively, from related
parties‘) ......................................................... 14,156 17,597 15,427
Net investment INCOME . . o\ttt et et et e 2,501 2,291 1,967
Net realized gains. . .. ...ttt 245 222 330
Other inL:ome ...................................................... 110 65 12
83,130 80,378 55,553
EXPENSES
Insuranc‘e benefits, claims and reserves ($39,682, $32,116 and $18,311,
respec‘tively, from related parties) .......... ... i 44,722 39,173 23,312
Selling, general and administrative expenses ($17,057, $15,748 and $8,027,
respec“tively, from related parties) ............. i 30,965 29,172 19,724
Amortization and depreciation .............. ... i 1,100 1,666 2,011
Non-cash compensation expense related to stock options .................. 227 456 141
Restructuring (benefit) expense . ....... ... it (67) — 152
MINOTity IMEEIESt . . ..ottt e e e 544 678 645
' | 77,491 71,145 45,985
Income from continuing operations before income tax ...................... 5,639 9,233 9,568
Provision (benefit) forincome taxes ........ ... ... . e 120 3,569 (2,993)
Income from continuing OpPerations ... ..........ooerierrunerunneennnennn, 5,519 5,664 12,561
Gain (lossl) on disposition of discontinued operations, net of tax .............. (59) 240 110
Net incomre .......................................................... $ 5460 $ 5904 $12,671
Basic income per common share:
Income [from continuing Operations . ... ............ueeinreeiunninnaeens $ 65 § 67 § 1.50
Gain (1(\)55) on disposition of discontinued operations ..................... (.01) .03 .01
Net inc<‘)mc applicable to common shares.............. ... ... ... ... $§ 64 $ 70 § 1.51
Shares used to compute basic income per share................coooveinnn... 8,447 8,434 8,411
Diluted income per common share:
Income|from continuing operations ............ ... ..o, $ 65 $ 66 $ 149
Gain (lcr‘)ss) on disposition of discontinued operations ..................... (.01) 03 01
Net income applicable to common shares........................ ... .... $§ 64 $§ 69 § 150
8,535 8,465

Shares us?d to compute diluted income pershare ............. ... ... ... 8,526

|

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: .
Nt IMCOIE L |\ttt et e e $ 5460 $ 5904 § 12,671

Adjustment to net income
Net realized gains ...... ... (245) (222) (330)
(Gain) loss on disposal of discontinued operations ............ ... ... ... .. ... 59 (240) (110)
Restructuring (benefit) eXpense. ... ... oot (67) — 152
Amortizatién and depreciation .. ... . e - 1,100 1,666 2,011
Equity inco‘me ............................................................ (26) 37 (258)
Deferred tax expense (benefit) ......... .. . . . (203) 3,065 (3,440)
Non-cash stock compensation €Xpense . ... ......oiuurtinereeuninraeeinnnay 227 456 141
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Net sales of trading SECUTIHES ... .. ..o ovvtttt ettt et e 248 249 —
Changein‘policyliabilities ........ (1,358) 3,605 11,581
Change in :net amounts due from and to reinsurers. ........ ... . i 3,093 (5,540) (4,279)
Change in accrued fee income .. ... ..o : 495 (236) (2,570)
Change in ‘prcmiums receivable . .. .. e (82) (884) (1,423)
Change in T0COME TAXES . -+« v e e v vt ettt e (71) (138) (350)
Change in other assets and other liabilities. ............ ... ... ... ... ... ... 298 799 917
Net cash from operating activities of continuing operations . ........................ 8,928 8,447 14,713
Net cash fror‘n operating activities of discontinued operations ... ............ .. ... (187) (192) (2,960)
Net cast}J from operating activities . ........... . ... .. i i e 8,741 8,255 11,753
CASH FLO\iVS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
Net (purchases) sales of short-term inveStments. . . .........covveerniennenn .. 3,442 (2,468) (5,836)
Change in resale and repurchase agreements . ..........coivuerreerneenneneen.n. — — 13,874
Change in ‘amounts due to and from brokers ......... ... .. oo e (206) 86 120
Sales and maturities of fixed maturities ........... e 31,120 81,795 98,858
Purchases ‘of fixed maturities ... ... . e (38,424)  (85,147)  (117,570)
Purchases l)f EQUILY SECUTIES . . v vttt ettt e e (1,617) (1,858) (1,118)
Sales of eq‘uity SECUTIEIES - o o vt ettt 720 2,225 668
Sales/distributions (purchases) of interest in partnerships............... P 69 (1,610) 10,000
Acquisitions of companies, Ret. . ... — (600) (16,102)
Net cash from investing activities .. ........ .ot (4,896) (7,577) (17,106)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds f}om exercise of stock options .......... ... i i 95 198 132
Net cash f‘rom financing activities .................... e 95 198 132
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .............. ... ... ... ........ 3,940 876 (5,221)
Cash and cas‘h equivalents, beginning of period ........... ... ...l 3,236 2,360 7,581
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period. . ........ ... ... ... o il $ 7,176 % 3,236 $ 2,360

SUPPLEMI%NTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during period for:
DD eTest . | e e o — — —

Income tay‘(cs ............................................................. $ 335 § 544 3§ 180

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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American Indeﬁendence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of Business

American Independence Corp. (“AMIC” or “the Company”) is a holding company engaged in the insurance
and reinsurance business through its wholly-owned insurance company, Independence American Insurance
Company (“Independence American”) and 1ts managing general underwriter subsidiaries: IndependenceCare
Holdings L.L.C. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “IndependenceCare”); Risk Assessment Strategies,
Inc. (“RAS”), Marlton Risk Group LLC (‘“Marlton”), and its investment in Majestic Underwriters LLC
(“Majestic”). IndependenceCare, RAS and Marlton are collectively referred to as the “MGU Subsidiaries”.

Prior to November 14, 2002, the Company |(then known as SoftNet Systems, Inc.) was a holding company
principally engaged in providing Internet services. Four previously reported business ségments, business center
services, satellite-based Internet services, cable-based Internet services and document management, have ceased
operations or have been sold, and accordingly are reported as discontinued operations (see Note 9 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements).

Since November 2002, AMIC has been ‘aﬁ]liated with Independence Holding Company (“IHC”), an
insurance holding company, which held 48% of AMIC’s outstanding common stock at December 31, 2005. The
senior management of THC provides direction to the Company through a service agreement between the Company
and THC. THC has also entered into long-term reinsurance treaties to cede Medical Stop-Loss to the Company.
Additionally, the Company began reinsuring IHC’s New York statutory disability business in the third quarter of
2004 and IHC’s short-term medical and consumer-driven group major medical business in 2005.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§
Principles of Consolidation and Presentation of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles and include the accountsiof AMIC and its consolidated subsidiaries. All intercompany
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect:
(i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities; (ii) the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements; and (iii) the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications |

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior years’ consolidated financial statements and related notes to
the consolidated financial statements in order to conform to the current year presentation.

Reverse Split

On February 13, 2003, the shareholders of tﬁe Company voted in favor of a one-for-three reverse stock split.
The purpose of the reverse stock split was to increase the Company’s stock price to over $5.00 per share in order to
avoid a delisting of the Company’s common stock' from the Nasdaq National Market. Although currently listed on
the NASDAQ National Market, the Company was required to comply with NASDAQ’s initial listing requirements
because of the discontinuation of its prior business and acquisition of its current insurance operations. The effect of
the reverse split has been reflected in all penods in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto.

Investment in Majestic Underwriters LLC

The Company’s investment in Majestic Underwnters LLC (see Note 5) (“Majestic”) is carried on the equity
method with the Company’s share of income o; loss credited or charged, as appropriate, to the Consolidated
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American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Statement of Operations with a corresponding charge to the Company’s investment account. The Company also
reduces its investment account for its proportionate share of the amortization expense for the intangible assets

. .
recorded in the acquisition.

|

Goodwill (and Other Intangibles

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives, which consist of licenses, are not amortized but are
reviewed for impairment, on a reporting unit basis, at least annually, or more frequently if indicators arise. The
Company defines its reporting units on a segment basis.

For goodwill, if the book value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the implied fair value of goodwill is
compared with the carrying amount of goodwill. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value,

) ] . .
an impairment loss is recorded in an amount equal to that excess.

The Company’s intangible assets consisting of broker/third party relationships are amortized over five years.

Impairme‘nt of Long-Lived Assets

The Ccr)mpany evaluates long-lived assets for impairment annually or whenever current events or changes in
circumstanc}es warrant evaluating whether the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable based on expected
undiscounted cash flows attributable to that asset. The amount of any impairment is measured as the difference
between the carrying value and the fair value of the impaired asset.

|

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

|

The carrying amount of the Company’s financial instruments, which include cash and cash equivalents,

restricted cash, short-term investments, due from reinsurers and premiums receivable approximates their fair values.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash arnd cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid securities with maturities of three months or less
from date o1r° purchase. Restricted cash primarily consists of funds held by the MGUSs for the benefit of their insurers
and reinsurers. These funds are restricted and are to be used to facilitate expeditious payment of approved claims.

The funds are replenished by the insurers and reinsurers as claims are paid by the MGUs.

Short-Term Investments

Investments with original maturities of 91-days to 1 year are considered short-term investments and are carried
at cost which approximates fair value.

|

Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Jooo "

Secunt‘les purchased under agreements to resell (“resale agreements”) and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase (“repurchase agreements’™) are treated as financing transactions and are carried at the amounts at which
the securiticJ:s will be subsequently resold or repurchased as specified in the agreements.

Investment Securities

(i) Inl/estments in fixed income securities, redeemable preferred stock equity securities and derivatives

(options and options on future contracts) are accounted for as follows:

(a) Securities which are held for trading purposes are carried at estimated fair value (“fair value”).
Unrcahzcd gains or losses are credited or charged, as appropriate, to the Consolidated Statements of
Operatlons
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American'Indepéndence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

" (b) Securities which may or may not be held to maturity (“available-for-sale securities”) are carried at
fair value. Unrealized gains or losses are credited or charged, as appropriate, directly to accumulated other
comprehensive income (a component of stockholders’ equity). Realized gains and losses on sales of available-
for-sale securities, and unrealized losses considered to be other than temporary, are credited or charged to the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. :

(ii) Financial instruments sold, but not yet purchased, represent obligations to replace borrowed securities that
have been sold. Such transactions occur in anticipation of declines in the fair value of the securities. The Company’s
risk is an increase in the fair value of the securities sold in excess of the consideration received, but that risk is
mitigated as a result of relationships to certain securities owned. Unrealized gains or losses on open transactions are
credited or charged, as appropriate, to the Consolidated Statements. of Operations. While the transaction is open,
the Company will also incur an expense for any ac‘::rucd dividends or interest payable to the lender of the securities.
When the transaction is closed, the Company realizes a gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between
the price at which the securities were sold and the cost of replacing the borrowed securities.

(iii) Gains or losses on sales of securities are determined on the basis of specific identification.

{iv) The Company enters. into derivative financial instruments, such as put and call option contracts and
options on interest rate futures contracts, to minimize losses on portions of the Company’s fixed income portfolio in
a rapidly changing interest rate environment. Equity index options are entered into to offset price fluctuations in the
equity markets. These derivative financial instruments are all readily marketable and are carried on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets at their current fair value with changes in fair value (unrealized gains or losses), credited or
charged, as appropriate, to the Consolidated Statements of Operations. All realized gains and losses are reflected
currently in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. There were no such derivatives outstanding at Decem-
ber 31, 2005 and 2004. Gains and (losses) on these instruments were ($90,000), ($27,000) and $45,000 during
20035, 2004 and 2003, respectively. :

(v) Fair value is determined by quoted market prices, where available, or by independent pricing services.

(vi) The Company reviews its investment securities regularly and determines whether other than temporary
impairments have occurred. If a decline in fair value is judged by management to be other than temporary, a loss is
recognized by a charge to the Consolidated Statements of Operations, establishing a new cost basis for the security.
The factors considered by management in its regular review include, but are not limited to: the length of time and
extent to which the fair value has been less than cost; the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer;
adverse changes in ratings announced by one or more rating agencies; whether the issuer of a debt security has
remained current on principal and interest payments; whether the decline in fair value appears to be issuer specific
or, alternatively, a reflection of general market or industry conditions; and the Company’s intent and ability to hold
the security for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in fair value. For securities within the scope of
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 99-20, suchi as purchased interest-only securities, an impairment loss is
recognized when there has been a decrease in expected cash flows combined with a decline in the security’s fair
value below cost.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumule‘lted depreciation. Improvements are capitalized while repair and
maintenance costs are charged to operations as incurred. Depreciation of property and equipment has been provided
on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets (3 years for computer equipment
and 10 years for furniture and fixtures). Amortization of leasehold improvements has been provided on the straight-
line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset.
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American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Premium|and MGU Fee Income Revenue Recognition

Direct |and assumed premiums from short-duration contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the
contracts in| proportion to the amount of insurance protection provided. The Company records MGU fee income as
policy premium payments are earned. MGUs are compensated in two ways. They earn fee income based on the
volume of business produced, and collect profit-sharing commissions if such business exceeds certain profitability
bcnchmarks“. Profit-sharing commissions are accounted for beginning in the period in which the Company believes
they are reasonably estimable, which is typically at the point that claims have developed to a level where Claim
Dcvelopmeht Patterns can be applied to generate reasonably reliable estimates of ultimate claim levels. Profit-
sharing commissions are a function of an MGU attaining certain profitability thresholds and could greatly vary from

quarter to quarter.

MGU fee income consisted of the following:
Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
MGU fee INCOME . ..ottt e e e $12,284 $14348  $12,808
MGU (fee income profit commissions. ............. ... . ... 1,872 2,749 2,619

$14,156 $17,597  $15,427

Insuranc‘z Reserves

The C‘ompany maintains loss reserves to cover its estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses, including legal, other fees, and costs not associated with specific claims but related to the claims payment
function), for reported and unreported claims incurred as of the end of each accounting period. These loss reserves

are based on actuarial assumptions and are maintained at levels that are in accordance with US generally accepted

accounting lprinciples. Many factors could affect these reserves, including economic and social conditions, frequency
and severity of claims, medical trend resulting from the influences of underlying cost inflation, changes in utilization
and deman}d for medical services, and changes in doctrines of legal liability and damage awards in litigation.
Therefore, the Company’s reserves are necessarily based on estimates, assumptions and analysis of historical
experience. The Company’s results depend upon the variation between actual claims experience and the assump-
tions used in determining reserves and pricing products. Reserve assumptions and estimates require significant
judgment a‘nd, therefore, are inherently uncertain. The Company cannot determine with precision the ultimate
amounts tﬂat will be paid for actual claims or the timing of those payments. The Company’s estimate of loss

represents Tnanagement’s estimate of the Company’s liability at the balance sheet date.

All of the Company’s contracts are short-duration and are accounted for based on actuarial estimates of the
amount of [loss inherent in that period’s claims, including losses incurred for claims that have not been reported
(“IBNR”)! Short-duration contract loss estimates rely on actuarial observations of ultimate loss experience for
similar historical events.

Liabilities for insurance reserves on short-term medical and disability coverages are computed using claim
development patterns and projected loss ratios derived from actual historical premium and claim data. Reserves for
medical stop-loss insurance are more volatile in nature than those for fully insured medical insurance. This is
primarily due to the excess nature of medical stop-loss, with very high deductibles applying to specific claims on any
individual c}:laimant and in the aggregate for a given group. The level of these deductibles makes it more difficult to
predict thc‘ amount and payment pattern of such claims. Furthermore, these excess claims are highly sensitive to
changes in factors such as medical trend, provider contracts and medical treatment protocols, adding to the difficulty
in predictiﬂg claim values and estimating reserves. Also, because medical stop-loss is in excess of an underlying

benefit plan, there is an additional layer of claim reporting and processing that can affect claim payment patterns.
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American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Finally, changes in the distribution of business by :eﬁ“ective month can affect reserve estimates due to the lag time
required to accumulate claims against the stop-loss deductible, unlike fully insured medical which has a more
predictable lag pattern. “ '

Liabilities for insurance reserves for fully insufed medical business are established to provide for the liability for
incurred but not paid claims. Reserves are calculated using standard actuarial methods and practices. Historical paid
claim patterns are reviewed and estimated development factors applied to immature incurred months to calculate
these reserves. i :

While these calculations are based on standafd methodologies, they are estimates based on historical patterns.
To the extent that actual claim payment patterns differ from historical patterns, such estimated reserves may be
redundant or inadequate. The effects of such deviations are evaluated by considering claim backlog statistics and
reviewing the reasonableness of projected claim ratios. Other factors which may affect the accuracy of reserve
estimates include the proportion of large claims which may take longer to adjudicate, changes in billing patterns by
providers and changes in claim management practices such as hospital bill audits.

Management believes that the Company’s methods of estimating the liabilities for insurance reserves provided
appropriate levels of reserves at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004. Changes in the Company’s reserve
estimates are recorded through a charge or credit to its earnings.

Reinsurance

Amounts recoverable or paid for under reinsurance contracts are included in total assets or total liabilities as
due from reinsurers or due to reinsurers. :

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis, and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in iricome in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation
allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets where it is more likely than not that the
deferred tax asset will not be realized (see Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Stock-Based Compensation and Change in Accohnting Principle

Effective October 1, 2002, the Company adoi:)ted certain provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based .Compensation” (“SFAS 123”). SFAS 123 established a fair-
value-based method of accounting for stock-based compensation plans. Pursuant to the transition provisions of
SFAS 123, the Company applied the fair value method of accounting to all option grants issued on or after
October 1, 2002. The fair valué method was not applied to stock option awards granted prior to October 1, 2002.
Such awards continued to be accounted for under the intrinsic value method pursuant to APB 25, except to the
extent those prior years’ awards were modified subsequent to October 1, 2002. At December 31, 2005 all such shares
accounted for under APB 25 were fully vested or e}(pired.

Income Per Common Share ‘}

Basic income per common share is computediusing the weighted average number of common stock shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted income per common share is computed using the weighted average number
of common stock shares and common stock equi;valent shares outstanding during the period. Common stock
equivalents consist of stock options (using the “treasury stock” method). Common Stock equivalent shares are
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American Independence Corp. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

excluded from the computation if the effect is anti-dilutive. As a result of the anti-dilutive effect, common stock
equivalent shares have been excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share for periods presented with
a net loss. I[ncludcd in the diluted earnings per share calculation for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, are 79,000,
101,000 and 54,000 shares, respectively, from the assumed exercise of options using the treasury stock method. Net
income does not change as a result of the assumed dilution of options.

|

| .
Recent A‘ccountmg Pronouncements

In Ma}}/ 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections,” which replaces APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes,” and SFAS No. 3,
“Reporting ‘Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statement,” and changes the requirements for the accounting
for and repc;rting of a change in accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 applies to all voluntary changes in accounting
principle and to changes required by an accounting pronouncement when the pronouncement does not include
specific tranjsition provisions. SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application of changes in accounting principle to
prior periods’ financial statements unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the
cumulative effect of the change. APB Opinion No. 20 previously required that most voluntary changes in accounting
principle be recognized by including the cumulative effect of the change in net income for the period of the change

in accountihg principle. SFAS No. 154 carries forward without change the guidance contained in APB Opinion

No. 20 for Jreporting the correction of an error in previously issued financial statements and a change in accounting
estimate. SFAS No. 154 also carries forward the guidance in APB Opinion No. 20 requiring justification of a
change in a(ccounting principle on the basis of preferability. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and

corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005, with early adoption permitted.

FASB|Staft Position No. FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment
and Its Application to Certain Investments” (the “FSP”), was issued in November 2005 and addresses the
determination of when an investment is considered impaired; whether the impairment is other than temporary; and
how to mg‘:asure an impairment loss. The FSP also addresses accounting considerations subsequent to the
recognition| of an other-than-temporary impairment loss on a debt security, and requires certain disclosures about
unrealized |losses that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary impairments. The FSP replaces the
impairment guidance in EITF Issue No..03-1 with references to existing authoritative literature concerning other-
than-tempc‘)rary determinations (principally SFAS No. 115 and SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin 59). Under the
FSP, an impairment loss must be recognized in earnings in an amount equal to the entire difference between the
security’s cost and its fair value at the financial statement date, without considering partial recoveries subsequent to
that date. T he FSP also requires that an investor recognize an other-than-temporary impairment loss when a
decision to sell a security has been made and the investor does not expect the fair value of the security to fully
recover prior to the expected time of sale. The ESP is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2005. The (Company does not expect that the application of the FSP will have a material impact on its financial

.ys | . . .
condition, results of operations or financial statement disclosures.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004) (“SFAS No. 123R”), “Share-Based
Payment” which revised SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. This statement supercedes
APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS No. 123R addresses the accounting for
share-baseh payment transactions with employees and other third parties, eliminates the ability to account for share-
based con’jlpensation transactions using APB 25 and requires that the compensation costs relating to such
transactions be recognized in the consolidated statement of operations. The revised statement is effective as of the
first ﬁscal}year beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company already applies the fair value based method of
accounting for all stock based compensation issued after October 1, 2002. At December 31, 2005 all such shares
accounted for under APB 25 were fully vested or expired. The Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 123R is not
expected t}o have any impact on its financial condition or results of operations.
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3. Goodwill
The Company completed its annual impairmef\t testing of goodwill and an impairment charge was not required.

"The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows (in thousands):

: ’ 2005 2004 2003
Balance at beginning of period ............ e e $24,154  $23,668  $12,295
Acquisition of ICH — MidAtlantic ........ b — 486 —
Acquisition of Marlton................... be e — — 11,373
Balance at end of period ................. . e $24,154  $24,154  $23,668

4. Intangible Assets :
-Intangible assets at December 31, 2005 and 2DO4 consist of the following (in thousands):

| December 31, 2005 : December 31, 2004
Definitive  Indefinite .~ Definitive Indefinite
) Lives Lives Total Lives Lives Total

Gross Carrying Value L o
Balance beginning of period ........ $ 4,814 $100 $ 4914 $ 4,700 $100 $ 4,800
Additions. . ............. e ' — - = 114 — 114
Balance end of period ............. 4,814 100 4914 43814 100 4914
Accumulated Amortization :
Balance beginning of period . ... .... (3,379) — (3,379)  (2,053) — (2,053)
Amortization eXpense ............. (809) — (809)  (1,326) — (1,326)
Balance end of period ............. (4,188) — (4,188)  (3,379) — (3,379)
Net intangible assets .............. $ 626  $100 $ 726 $1435 $100 § 1,535
Weighted average remaining life in : f

VEATS .ottt 0.68 1.57

Expected amortization expense for the next five years is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending
December 31,

2006 - -\ e $427

2007 L 192
2008 . 7
2000 . e —
2000 L —

$626

5. Acquisitions
Majestic

Effective July 1, 2004, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired a 23% interest in Majestic
Underwriters LLC (“Majestic”), a Medical Stop-Loss managing general underwriter for a purchase price of
$1,610,000. Concurrently, wholly-owned subsidiaries of Independence Holding Company acquired a 52% interest in
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Majestic. The senior management of Majestic owns the remaining 25% interest. The Company accounts for this
investment using the equity method of accounting. This acquisition resulted in a $522,000 reduction of valuation
allowance related to the deferred tax assets, with the effect being an increase to deferred tax asset and a
corresponding decrease in other investments. Under certain circumstances set forth in the Limited Liability
Agreement| of Majestic, the Company has the right and/or obligation to purchase some or all of the minority
interest in Majestic.

ICH-MidAtlantic

On April 16, 2004, the Company expanded its business through the acquisition of substantially all of the assets
of an employer Medical Stop-Loss managing general underwriter for a purchase price of $600,000. The assets were
acquired b}‘/ IndependenceCare Underwriting Services — MidAtlantic LLC (“ICH-MidAtlantic”), which is based
in Baltimore, Maryland and which retained the key marketing personnel of the former MGU. This acquisition

resulted in/goodwill in the amount of $486,000 and intangible assets in the amount of $114,000.
(In thousands)

Intangible assets .. ......ocvivinnn i AP $114

GOOGWLL ..o oot 486

Purchase Price. ... ... i $600
Marlton

On FFbmary 10, 2003, but effective as of January 1, 2003, the Company acquired 80% of the business of an
employer /Medical Stop-Loss MGU and an affiliated entity (the “Acquired MGUs”). The acquisition was
accomplished by the formation of Voorhees Risk Management LLC d.b.a. Marlton Risk Group (“Marlton”) into
which the| Acquired MGUs contributed all of their assets, and the Company contributed $16,000,000 cash for an
80% owne‘rship interest. The Company’s cash contribution was then distributed to the Acquired MGUs together
with the remaining 20% interest in Marlton, and Marlton assumed all of the liabilities of the Acquired MGUE.
Under cettain circumstances set forth in the Limited Liability Company Agreement of Marlton, the Company has
the right and/or obligation to purchase some or all of the minority interests in Marlton. The total purchase price of

approximétely $16,102,000 consisted of $16,000,000 of cash and $102,000 of direct transaction costs.

(In thousands)

Assets:
Ta‘ngible BSSEES . . ittt e $ 5,323
Amortizable broker/ TPA relationships intangible asset........................... 2,800
G(/)odwill e e e 11,373
N[et deferred tax asset .. ... ...t 5,760
Liab‘ilities ................................................................... (5,128)
Mingrity OISt L (4,026)

PLJlrchase 3 3 1= P $16,102

\
Of the total purchase price, $5,323,000 has been allocated to net tangible assets acquired and $2,800,000 has
been allo:cated to amortizable intangible assets acquired. The depreciation and amortization related to the fair value

adjustme{fnt to net tangible assets and the amortization related to the amortizable intangible assets are reflected in
the consolidated statements of operations. The intangible asset is being written off over the five years following the

acquisiti&n based on the respective discounted cash flows.
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Of the total purchase price, approximately $1 1‘373 000 has been allocated to goodwill. Goodwill represents the

excess of the purchase price of an acquired busmess over the fair value of the underlying net tangible and intangible
assets.

6. Investments

The cost (amortized cost with respect to certain fixed maturities), gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized
losses and fair value of long-term investment securities are as follows:
\ December 31, 2005

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(In thousands)

FIXED MATURITIES
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE: ‘1
Corporate securities .................... e $22,349 $23 $ (620) $22,252

Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO) land asset
backed securities ABS ............. ... PR 5,570 — (140) 5,430
U.S. Government and agencies obligations ............. 7,802 — (167) 7,635
Government sponsored enterprise (GSE) MBS ......... 3,563 — (62) 3,501
Agency mortgage backed pass through secuntles (MBS) 1,654 - (28) 1,626
Total fixed maturities .. ... ... ... iviiii... $41,438 $23 $(1,017) $40,444
EQUITY SECURITIES |
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE :
Preferred stock ....................... b $ 1,954 §5 $ (75) $ 1,884
December 31, 2004
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

_ (In thousands)
FIXED MATURITIES
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE:

Corporate securities ..................... ........ $12,855 $ 94 (286)  $12,663
CMO and ABS. .. .. .oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiioiiiins 6,841 45 (164) 6,722
U.S. Government and agencies obligations . . ....... 7,723 58 (36) 7,745
GSE MBS . ... 4,788 11 (6) 4,793
MBS. ... 2,091 — (8) 2,083
Total fixed maturities . .................. s $34,298 $208 (500)  $34,006
EQUITY SECURITIES |
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 3
Preferred Stock ... .o.vvueiiiii i e $ 1,035 $ 7 — $ 1,042

Government-sponsored enterprise mortgage-backed securities consist of Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation and Federal National Mortgage Association securities.
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The an}rlortized cost and fair value of fixed maturities at December 31, 2005 by contractual maturity are shown
below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or
prepay obliéations with or without call or prepayment penalties. The average life of mortgage backed securities is
affected by prepayments on the underlying loans and, therefore, is materially shorter than the original stated
maturity. ‘

December 31, 2005

Amortized Fair % of Fair

Cost Value Value

(In ¢housands)
Dueinoneyearorless........... oo i, $ 764 § 744 2%
Due anter one year through five years............................ 7,903 7,747 19%
Due after five years through ten years ........................ ... 9,281 9,048 22%
Due a}fter TEI YEATS ot e ittt e 12,704 12,349 31%
30,652 29,888 74%
CMQ, ABS, and MBS ‘ v

L YIS it ... 6,002 5,854 14%
30 years ... S S SRR 4784 4702 12%

.............................. i $41438 ° $40,444  100%

\
The following tables summarizes, for all securities in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004, the aggregate fair value and gross unrealized loss by length of time, those securities have

continuou‘sly been in an unrealized loss position (in thousands):

) 3 . December 31, 2005
| Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Loss Value Losses Value Losses
FIXED MATURITIES: |
Corp“orate securities ............. $13,003 $392 $2,872 $183 $15875  $ 575
CMO and ABS ................ 2,498 .46 2,933 94 5,431 140
U.S.;‘ Government and agencies : :
ob{'ligations ................... 6,760 134 876 33 7,636 167
GSFT MBS ... ... 5,516 107 — — 5,516 107
MB}S ......................... 150 2 1,475 - 26 1,625 28
T}otal fixed maturities. ......... $27,927 $681 $8,156 $336 $36,083 $1,017
P(referred Stock .............. $ 559 $ 63 $ 325 $ 12 $ 884 $ 75
|
|
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: December 31, 2004
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
FIXED MATURITIES: f
Corporate securities ............. $ 9,198 $286 $ — $— $ 9,198 $286
CMOand ABS ................ 3,797, 121 1,765 43 5,562 164
U.S. Government and agencies i
obligations . .................. 5,800 36 — — 5,800 36
GSEMBS .................... 983 6 — — 983 6
MBS ..ot 1,878 8 — — 1,878 8
Total fixed maturities. ......... $21,656 $457 $1,765 $43 $23.421 $500

Substantially all of the unrealized losses at December 31, 2005 and 2004 relate to investment grade securities
and are attributable to changes in market interest rates subsequent to purchase. The Company reviews its
investments regularly and monitors its investments for impairments. A total of 52 securities were in a continuous
unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and 21 securities for 12 months or longer as of December 2005. A
total of 46 securities were in a continuous unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and 4 securities for
12 months or longer as of December 31, 2004. For years 2005, 2004, and 2003 the Company realized a loss of $0,
$134,000 and $0, respectively, from other than temporary impairments. The remaining unrealized losses were
evaluated in accordance with the Company’s policy and were determined to be temporary in nature at December 31,
2005. |

The Company had no derivative instruments at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004.

Gross gains of $478,000 and gross losses of $4Sl,000 were realized on sales of available-for-sale securities for
the year ended December 31, 2005. The Company realized gains of $248,000 from trading securities in fiscal year
2005.

Gross gains of $876,000 and gross losses of $903,000 (including $134,000 from temporary impairment) were
realized on sales of available-for-sale securities for the year ended December 31, 2004. The Company reahzed gains

of $249,000 from trading securities in fiscal year 2004

Gross gains of $1,449,000 and gross losses of $1,119,000 were realized on sales of available-for-sale securities
for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Major categories of net investment income for years 2005, 2004 and 2003 are summarized as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004 2003

| (In thousands)
Fixed Maturities ... .......oieunnee e $1,888  $1,974  $1,512
Equity securities ........... ... oo 87 147 80
Short-term investments .................. ........................ 209 44 63
Other . o e 291 89 54
Equity income from partnerships .................. .. ... .. 26 37 258

$2,501  $2,261  $1,967
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Net realized gains/ (losses) on investments for years 2005, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004 2003

(In thousands)

Fixed maturities................... . U $(14) $ 10  $200
Equity|securities, . ................. e e 259 212 130
Netrealized gain .. ... i $245  $222  $330

7. Equity Investments

At De?ember 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, the Company had an equity investment in Majestic with a
carrying value of $1,082,000 and 1,125,000, respectively (see Note 5). For fiscal years 2005 and 2004, the Company
recorded $2‘6,000 and $34,000, respectively, for its share of income from its investment in Majestic. In prior periods,
the Company had various equity method investments. At December 31, 2003, the Company had written off or sold

all prior investments held under the equity method of accounting.

8. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets, which is included in other assets, consist of the following:
Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004

(In thousands)
Furniture and fIRIUTES. . . . oottt e e e $ 573 § 935
Leasehold improvements. . ... ...ttt i e 126 287
BEquipment .. ... 935 473
Total T T PR RREER 1,634 1,695
Less a‘llowance for depreciation . ............. . i e (1,234)  (1,104)
Fixed assets, Met. . ...ttt e $ 400 § 591

9. Discontinued Operations

|
Until z?xpril 2002, the Company (then known as SoftNet Systems, Inc.) was an Internet service provider. Due

to difficult and deteriorating conditions in that market, the Company discontinued this business. In December 2000,
the Compahy’s board of directors approved a plan to discontinue the operations of its subsidiary, ISP Channel, Inc.,
which had [provided cable-based Internet access and related services, and the operations of another subsidiary,
Aerzone C?moration, which provided Internet and related services at airports. In April 2002, the Company, ceased
operations of its remaining operating subsidiary, Intelligent Communications, Inc., following the disposition of its
key assets. The operating results of these discontinued operations have been segregated from continuing operations
and are reported as a gain or loss from discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of operations.
Although if[ is difficult to predict the final results, the gain or loss on disposition from discontinued operations
includes management’s estimates of costs to wind down the business and costs to settle its outstanding liabilities.
The actual results could differ from these estimates. The net liabilities associated with discontinued operations are

reflected ininet liabilities associated with discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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Discontinued Operations of Intelligent Communications, Inc. (“Intellicom”)

On March 29, 2002, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Intellicom, entered into an agreement to
sell its operating business and certain assets to Loral Cyberstar, Inc. Following the sale of its operating business and
certain assets to Loral Cyberstar, Inc., the Company’s Board of Directors unanimously agreed to cease the
operations of Intellicom on April 3, 2002. Principally due to the Company’s guaranty of Intellicom’s lease for its
facility in Livermore, California, the Company has' reserves for discontinued operations of Intellicom of $808,000 for
this liability at December 31, 200S. |

Discontinued Operations of Aerzone Corporation (“Aerzone”)

On January 24, 2000, the Company founded Aerzone (formerly SoftNet Zone, Inc.) to provide high-speed
Internet access to global business travelers. As part of the Aerzone business, the Company acquired Laptop Lane,
on April 21, 2000. On December 19, 2000, the Company decided to discontinue the Aerzone business in light of
significant long-term capital needs and the difficulty of securing the necessary financing because of the current state
of the financial markets. The Company has no remaining reserve for Aerzone at December 31, 2005.

Discontinued Operations of ISP Channel, Inc. ( “ISP Channel”)

On December 7, 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a plan to discontinue providing cable-based
Internet services through its ISP Channel subsidiary by December 31, 2000, because consolidation in the cable
television industry made it difficult for ISP Channel to achieve the economies of scale necessary to provide such
services profitably, and the Company was no longer able to bear the costs of maintaining the ISP Channel. The
Company has no remaining reserve for ISP Channel at December 31, 2005.

Discontinued Operations of Micrographic Technology Corporation (“MTC”)

As a result of the December 31, 1999 sale of MTC to Global Information Distribution GmbH (*“GID”), the
Company discontinued operations of MTC. The Company has no remaining reserve for MTC at December 31,
2005.

Discontinued Operations of Kansas Communications, Inc (“KCI”)

As a result of the February 12, 1999 sale of the‘ assets of the telecommunications segment, KCI, to Convergent
Communications Services, Inc., the Company dlscontmued this segment. The Company has no remaining reserve
for KCI at December 31, 2005.

Net liabilities associated with discontinued operatlons at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows (in
thousands):

2005 2004

Current liabilities:
Estimated closure costs......... L $808  $879
Other accrued expenses ................ e e - 57
Net liabilities associated with discontinued opérations ............................. @_ﬁ &
Intellicom ... ................................... $808  $879
ABTZONE. . o ottt et et — 27
MTC _— 30
Net liabilities associated with discontinued opérations ............................. $808 &

H
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The results of discontinued operations are as follows: (in thousands):

( : Year Ended
December 31,

2005 2004 2003

RevenTes ......................................................... $ — $— § —
Expenses
INEElliCOM . . .o oot e (147) 48  (489)
Aerz‘one ......................................................... 27 — 168
ISP Chanmel. .. ..o\t — 153 155
MTC .o 30 19 529
KO . o — 20 (253)
IncomL (loss) before income taxes . .......ccovvriiiiiiiiii i (90) 240 110
Benefit (provision) for INCOME taXES . ... v vttt n ettt 31 — —
Net inJcome (1088 ) + oo R $ (59) $240 §$ 110

Gain |(Loss) from disposition of discontinued operations results from re-estimation of certain expected
eXpenses.

10. Restructuring Reserve

On December 28, 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a plan to reduce its corporate
headquarte(rs staff in conjunction with discontinuing certain businesses. During the year ended December 31, 2005,
the Company reversed the remaining reserve of $67,000 related to the restructuring. This reserve primarily related
to the leasé obligations of the former corporate headquarters in San Francisco, California, which expired on July 31,
2005; the Company also had an $800,000 security deposit with respect to this liability which was returned to the
Company i In August 2005.

The b‘alance of restructuring reserve as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, and activity during that

period is as follows (in thousands):

20052004

Balan‘ce, beginning of year ... ... ... .. $ 300 § 866
Less: change in estimated costs . ............ ... .. i e (67) —
Less: PAYMENLS ..o .o\ oo s e e e (233) _(566)
Balanice, end of year: . ... ... i e § — § 300

‘ =

11. Commitments and Contingencies

|

Fixed‘ maturities with a carrying value of $4,038,055 are on deposit with various state insurance departments at
December 31, 2005.

The Company has operating leases for office space and certain other office equipment. These operating leases
provide for minimum rents and generally include options to renew for additional periods. The Company has
subleased its principal executive offices.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases and sublease income as of Decem-
ber 31, 2005, are as follows {(in thousands): 1
. |

Net Operating

Year Ending December 31, Leases
2006 .. $ 624
2007 589
2008 .. i ..................................... 478
2009 . . e 219
2000 ... S S 107
2011 and thereafter ........ ... .. . d —

Total ..o T $2,017

The Company’s net rent expense from contihuing operations for fiscal years 2005, 2004, and 2003 were
$872,000, $923,000 and $882,000, respectively.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of its businesses.
The Company has established reserves that it believbs are sufficient given information presently available related to
its outstanding legal proceedings and claims. The Company believes the results of pending legal proceedings and
claims are not expected to have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or cash flows, although there
could be such an effect on its results of operations for a particular period.

12. Stock Options and Warrants
1998 Stock Incentive Plan (<1998 Plan’)

i

Effective October 1, 1998, the Company impicmented the 1998 Plan, which the Company’s stockholders
approved on April 13, 1999. The 1998 Plan provides for the grants of non-statutory and incentive stock options,
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, performance shares, and other awards to officers, employee and
other individuals. Under the terms of the 1998 Plan, stock options have a maximum term of ten years from the date
of grant, and have various vesting criteria depending on the grant with most grants vesting 25% on the first year
anniversary date of the grant and ratably over the next 36 months. In addition, the number of common stock shares
reserved for issuance under the 1998 Plan will automatically increase on the first trading day of each calendar year,
beginning in calendar year 2000, by an amount equal to four percent of the total number of common stock shares
outstanding on the last trading day of the precedingi calendar year, but in no event will any such annual increase
exceed 666,666 shares, subject to adjustment for subsequent stock splits, stock dividends and similar transactions.
At December 31, 2005, a total of 2,831,251 stock shares are reserved for issuance under the 1998 Plan. At
December 31, 2005, stock options for 504,167 common stock shares were outstanding, stock options for
364,477 common stock shares were vested, and 4,814,307 common stock shares remained available for future stock
options grants and other awards.

Common Stock Warrants

On March 22, 1999, the Company issued warrants to purchase 1,004 common stock shares to an institutional
lender in connection with a $3,000,000 credit facility. The credit facility was used to fund certain capital equipment
acquisitions. The warrants had an exercise price of $89.63 and expired on March 22, 2003. The fair value of the
warrants on the issuance date was estimated using gthe Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptions: volatility of 108%, risk free interest rate of 4.78%, no dividend yield, and an expected contractual life of
four years. “
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Options and Warrants Qutstanding

The following table summarizes the outstanding options and
years 2005, 2004 and 2003;

Outstanding Options

warrants to purchase common stock shares for

Outstanding Options

Outstanding Warrants and Warrants

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Balance, December 31, 2002 ............ 430,808 $22.32 101,004 $51.38 531,812 $27.84
Granted. .( ............................ 58,351 8.83 — — 58,351 8.83
Exercised |.........cooiiviiinnn (27,779) 4.69 — — (27,779) 4.6%
Canceled.|......... . ... .. .. ... (6,447) 25.69 {101,004) 51.38 (107,451) 49.84
Balance, December 31, 2003 ............ 454,933 21.62 — — 454,933 21.62
Granted . .J ............................ 145,671 14.43 — — 145,671 14.43
Exercised|......... ... ... .. ... .. ..... (16,694) 18.53 — — (16,694) 18.53
Canceled!......... ... .. ... ... .. ... {136,358) 34.38 — — (136,358) 34.38
Balance, December 31, 2004 .. ... ... .... 447,552 15.50 - — 447,552 15.50
Granted . J ............................ 82,333 13.80 — — 82,333 13.80
Exercised’ ............................ (12,334) 7.80 — — (12,334) 7.80
Canccled‘ ............................. (13,384) 35.00 — — (13,384) 35.00
Balance, December 31, 2005 ......... ... 504,167 $14.90 —  $ — 504,167 $14.90

)
The ‘ffollowing table summarizes information regarding stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005:

QOutstanding Options

\Xsigrgtgeed Vested Options

Remaining Weighted Weighted

Contractual Average Average
Life Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Shares (Years) Price Shares Price

|

$ 3.94 to $10.00 ... ... 244,730 5.67 $ 6.64 233,202 $ 6.58
lO.Pl to 2000 ... ... ... 199,894 7.84 14.53 71,732 15.82
ZO.PI to 40.00 .......... ..o 25,834 1.51 29.60 25,834 29.60
40.?1 to 7444 ... 33,709 348 65.75 33,709 65.75
$394to$7144 ... 504,167 6.17 $14.90 364,477 $15.50

Stock-Based Compensation and Change in Accounting Principle

On

November 14, 2002, the Company adopted certain provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 1237). SFAS 123 established a fair-

value-based method of accounting for stock-based compensation

plans. Pursuant to the transition provisions of

SFAS 123, the Company applied the fair value method of accounting to all option grants issued on or after
October|1, 2002. The fair value method was not applied to stock option awards granted prior to October 1, 2002.
Such awards continue to be accounted for under the intrinsic value method pursuant to APB 25, except to the extent

those prior years’ awards are modified subsequent to October 1,

2002. At December 31, 2005 all such shares

accounted for under APB 25 were fully vested or expired. The Company recorded an expense of approximately
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$227,000, $456,000 and $123,000 for the years enaed December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, related to
options issued under the fair value based method. For the year ended December 31, 2003 the remaining $17,000 of
non-cash compensation expense relates to optionsiissued under the intrinsic value method pursuant to APB 25.

Had the Company applied the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation awards
issued prior to October 1, 2002, the Company’s net'income (loss) and income (loss) per share would have been the
pro forma amounts as follows (in thousands except per share data):

Year End December 31,

2005 2004 2003
: (In thousands)

Net income (loss) as reported: . ........... % ...................... .. $5,460  $5,504  $12,671
Add stock-based compensation expense included in reported income . . .. 227 456 141
Deduct stock-based compensation expense determined under the fair

value based method for all awards ....... e (227) (373) (263)
Pro forma net income (loss) .............. ........................ $5,460 $5,987  $12,549
Basic income (loss) per common share: *

Asreported . ........ ... ... . ... e $ 64 § 70 $ 151

Proforma ....... ... .. $§ 64 § 71 § 149
Diluted income (loss) per common share:

Asreported ................ R S e $§ 64 $§ 69 $§ 150

Proforma ....... . . ... e $ 64 $ 70 % 1.48

The fair value of each stock option on the daté of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following weighted average assumptlons for years 2005, 2004 and 2003:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Volatility ... ... OO 27.15%  4334%  34.40%
Risk-free interestrate. .................... P 4.01% 3.82% 4.05%
Dividend yield........................... F — — —
Expected lives in years. .. ................. T 5.00 500  10.00

Weighted average fair value ..............cooiiiiieeiiinneanaann. $ 428 § 755 $4.67

13. Related Party Transactions

AMIC and its subsidiaries incurred expense of $564,000, $550,000 and $201,000 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2003 respectively, from its service agreements with ITHC and its subsidiaries. These
payments reimburse IHC and its subsidiaries, at agreed upon rates including an overhead factor, for management
services provided to AMIC and its subsidiaries, inclpding accounting, legal, compliance, underwriting, and claims.

Independence American assumes premiums from related parties, and records related insurance income,
expenses, assets and liabilities. Additionally, the MGU Subsidiaries market, underwrite and provide administrative
services (including premium collection, medical mahagcment and claims adjudication) for a substantial portion of
the Medical Stop-Loss business written by the insurance subsidiaries of IHC and records related income, assets and
liabilities in connection with that business. Such relited party information is disclosed on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company also contracts for several types of insurance
coverage (e.g. directors and officers and professional liability coverage) jointly with IHC. The cost of this coverage
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is split prop“ortionally between the Company and IHC according to the type of risk and AMIC’s portion is recorded

in Selling, General and Administrative Expenses.

14. Ingome Taxes

|

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolidated Federal income tax return on a September 30 fiscal tax
year. The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the periods ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,
| 2005 2004 2003

‘r (In thousands)

CURl‘QENT:
U.SJ. Federal . ..o $ 76 $ 137 § 49
Sta‘te and local . ... 247 367 398
323 504 447
DEFI{‘ERRED: '
US. Federal . . ... (294) 3,018 (3,546)
Stalte and 106l .+ .+ .o\ 91 47 106

(203) 3,065 {3,440)
( $ 120  $3,569  $(2,993)

Taxes computed at the Federal statutory rate of 35% for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
are recondiled to the Company’s actual income tax expense (benefit) as follows:

|

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
Tax ti:omputed at the statutory rate .......... ... it $ 1,974 $3315 $ 3,349
Dividends received deduction and tax exempt interest................ (1) (19) (14)
State and local income taxes, net of Federal effect .................. 220 270 328
Valu"ation allowance ... ... (2,079) — (6,668)
Other, met ... 16 3 12
Income tax (benefit) ...... ... ... .. . $ 120  $3,569  $(2,993)

The Federal income tax provision (benefit) for the periods ending December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 include
income tax provisions of $1,861,000, $3,155,000 and $969,000, respectively, for the utilization of the Company’s
Federal net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs). During 2005, the Company recorded $31,000 of deferred tax
benefit on discontinued operations which was included in Gain (loss) on Disposition of Discontinued Operations,

net of tax(, in the Statement of Operations.
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The tax effect of temporary differences that 1\;‘give rise to significant portions of the net deferred tax assets at
December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows: ‘

2005 2004
i (In thousands)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS: r

Restructuring accruals. . ................. P $ — $ 130
Net liabilities associated with discontinued operations ...................... 324 527
Investments ....................c.oon.. e 644 644
Unpaid accruals ... 162 162
Property and eqUipment .. ..... ... 141 141
Other...................... e e 8 123
Compensation accruals ...... [ P 1,052 984
Goodwill ..... ... . i i e 512 481
Insurance reserves ................. . ..... [ 121 146
Unrealized securities losses ............... e e e 372 100
Net operating loss carryforwards ........... ............................. 98,836 99,802
Total gross deferred tax assets ........... e 102,172 103,250
Less valuation allowance.................. e (87,060)  (88,867)
Net deferred tax assets ................. ............................. 15,112 14,423
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES: i
Other. . ..ottt e (1,361) (932)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities ................ ... .. ... ..., (1,361) (932)
Net deferred tax @SSET. . .. ...\ vttt i $ 13,751 $ 13,491

During the year ended December 31, 2005 the Company reduced its valuation allowance by $1,807,000. This
reduction included $2,079,000 for the projected utilization of Federal operating losses which was allocated to
operations and a $272,000 increase of deferred tax on unrealized losses allocated to equity. During the year ended
December 31, 2004, the Company reduced its valuation allowance by $797,000. This reduction included $522,000
for the Majestic purchase transaction, which was allocated to goodwill and $275,000 for the net change in other
deferred tax assets and liabilities. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company reduced its valuation
allowance by $12,548,000. This reduction included' $5,760,000 for the Marlton purchase transaction which was
allocated to goodwill and $6,788,000 for the projected utilization of Federal net operating losses which was allocated
to operations. :

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax ass%:ts, management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will‘inot be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the period in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable
income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Management believes that it is more likely than not
that the Company will realize the benefits of these net deferred tax assets recorded at December 31, 2005.
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At December 31, 2005, the Company had Federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately

$277,582,000 which expire as follows (in thousands).

Tax Year:
201? ........................................................................ $ 22,442
2020 . 70,827
202}1 ........................................................................ 142,530
2022 L 41,258
2023 o 523
00 2

| ~ $277,582

At December 31, 2005, the Company also had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $25,814,000
for state income tax purposes, primarily in the State of California. Management believes that it is more likely than
not that the state tax benefit of these net operating loss carryforwards will not be realized.

AMIC’s ability to utilize its Federal Net Operating Loss Carrryforwards (“NOLs”) would be substantially
reduced if JAMIC were to undergo an “ownership change” within the meaning of Section 382(g) (1) of the Internal
Revenue Code. AMIC will be treated as having had an “ownership change” if there is more than a 50% increase in
stock own"ership during a three year "“‘testing period” by “5% stockholders.” In order to reduce the risk of an
ownership| change, in November 2002, AMIC’s stockholders approved an amendment to its Certificate of
Incorporation restricting transfers of shares of its common stock that could resuit in the imposition of limitations on
the use, for federal, state and city income tax purposes, of AMIC’s carryforwards of net operating losses and certain
federal income tax credits. The Certificate of Incorporation generally restricts any person from attempting to sell,
transfer ofr dispose, or purchase or acquire any AMIC stock, if such transfer would affect the percentage of AMIC
stock owried by a 5% stockholder. Any person attempting such a transfer will be required, prior to the date of any
proposed transfer, to request in writing that the board of directors review the proposed transfer and authorize or not
authorize|such proposed transfer. Any transfer attempted to be made in violation of the stock transfer restrictions
will be m:lll and void. In the event of an attempted or purported transfer involving a sale or disposition of capital
stock in violation of stock transfer restrictions, the transferor shall remain the owner of such shares. Notwithstanding
such tran‘sfcr restrictions, there could be circumstances under which an issuance by AMIC of a significant number
of new shares of Common Stock or other new class of equity security having certain characteristics (for example,
the right to vote or convert into Common Stock) might result in an ownership change under the Code.

15. Insurance Reserves

The| Company maintains loss reserves to cover its estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses, including legal and other fees and a portion of the Company’s general expenses, for reported and
unreport}ed claims incurred as of the end of each accounting period. These loss reserves are based on actuarial
assumptions and are maintained at levels that are in accordance with GAAP. Many factors could affect these
reserves,! including economic and social conditions, inflation, healthcare costs, changes in doctrines of legal liability
and damfage awards in litigation. Therefore, the Company’s reserves are necessarily based on estimates, assumptions
and analysis of historical experience. The Company’s results depend upon the variation between actual claims
experience and the assumptions used in determining reserves and pricing products. Reserve assumptions and
estimates require significant judgment and, therefore, are inherently uncertain. The Company cannot determine

with pre‘cision the ultimate amounts that will be paid for actual claims or the timing of those payments.

Re?erves are based on approved actuarial methods, but necessarily include assumptions about expenses,
mortality, morbidity, lapse rates and future yield on related investments.
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All of the Company’s short-duration contracts are generated from our accident and health business, and are
accounted for based on actuarial estimates of the;amount of loss inherent in that period’s claims, including losses
incurred for which claims have not been reported. Short-duration contract loss estimates rely on actuarial
observations of ultimate loss experience for similar historical events.

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
| (In thousands)
Balance at a beginning of period .......... B R TP $22,240 $18,635 $ 7,054
Less: reinsurance recoverables............. I (4,344) (4,262)  (3,484)
Net balance at beginning of period ........ ...................... 17,896 14,373 3,570
Amount incurred:
Current year ..........ccoviieininann.. L 44,417 37,443 23,490
Prioryears . ........c.coveiiininnen. .. e 305 1,730 (178)
Total. ..o TP 44722 39173 23312
Amount paid, related to:
Current vear ... B 29,829 21,521 10,030
Prior years ...t ...................... 15,976 14,129 2,479
TOtal. ot e 45805 35650 12,509
Net balance at end of period.............. ...................... 16,813 17,896 14,373
Plus: reinsurance recoverables............. ...................... 4,069 4,344 4,262
Balance at end of period ................. e $20,882  $22,240  $18,635

The preceding schedule reflects (i) the due and unpaid, (ii) claims in the course of settlement, (iii) estimated
incurred but not reported reserves and (iv) the present value of amounts not yet due on claims. The incurred and
paid data above reflects all activity for the year. The amount incurred in 2005, 2004 and 2003 for prior years of
$305,000, $1,730,000 and ($178,000), respectively, is primarily a result of re-estimation of unpaid losses on Medical
Stop-Loss reserves. This increase (decrease) is generally the result of on-going analysis of recent loss development
trends. ‘

16. Reinsurance

Independence American reinsures a portion of its provider excess loss business in order to limit the assumption
of disproportionate risks. Amounts not retained are ceded to other companies on an automatic basis. Independence
American is contingently liable with respect to reinsurance in the unlikely event that the assuming reinsurers are
unable to meet their obligations. The ceding of reinsurance does not discharge the primary liability of the original
insurer to the insured. At December 31, 2005, Indépendencc American ceded to three highly rated reinsurers.
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The effect of reinsurance on insurance benefits and premiums earned is as follows (in thousands):

Assumed % of
from Ceded to Amount
Gross Other Other Net Assumed
Amount Companies Companies Amount to Net
Insurar‘lce Benefits:
Year ended December 31,2005 ............. $1,503 $44,148 $ 929 $44,722 99%
Year ended December 31,2004 ... ... .. 1,682 38,602 1,111 39,173 99%
Year e‘Jnded December 31,2003 ............. 1,440 22,592 720 23,312 97%
Premil;lms Earned:
Year e{‘nded December 31,2005 ............. $1,727 $65,384 $ 993 $66,118 99%
Year e‘nded December 31,2004 ............. 2,506 59,365 1,668 60,203 99%
Year c‘nded December 31,2003 ............. 2,231 36,702 1,116 37,817 97%

17. Dividiand Restrictions on Insurance Subsidiary

|

Dividends from Independence American to its parent, a subsidiary of AMIC, are subject to the prior
notification to the Delaware Insurance Commissioner. If such dividends, together with the fair market value of other
dividends ojr distributions made within the preceding twelve months, exceed the greater of (i) 10% of surplus as
regards policyholders as of the preceding December 31 or (ii) net income, not including realized capital gains, for
the twelve.month period ending the 31st day of December next preceding, such dividends may be paid so long as
they have not been disapproved by the Delaware Insurance Commissioner within 30 days of its receipt of notice

thereof. In{dependenoe American did not pay any dividends in 2005, 2004, and 2003.
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18. Segment Information

Management has restated previously reported :segment information reflecting how management currently views

its operations. Segment information is as follows: |

Revenues:

Independence American ............... ..t
MGU Subsidiaries ...................... S
Corporate...........ooviiii e
Netrealized gains. ...................... e

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax:

Independence American ................. e
MGU Subsidiaries ...................... e
Corporate. ..o b
Net realized gains. . ................ov... e

Identifiable Assets at Year End: :

Independence American ................. T
MGU Subsidiaries .............oi i
Corporate...............................‘ ...................

19. Other Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

(In thousands)

$ 68293 § 62,301 $39,384

14,434 17,745 15,483

158 110 356

245 222 330

$ 83,130 $ 80,378  $55,553

$ 2,886 $ 4329 § 5,047

3,955 6,771 4,936

(1,447) (2,089) (745)

245 222 330

$ 5639 $ 9233 § 9,568
$ 64,125 $ 60,145
58,652 57,507
6,955 6,743
$129,732 $124,395

The components of total comprehensive incordp, net of tax, include net income and certain amounts reported
directly in equity, such as the after-tax unrealized gains and losses on investment securities available-for-sale. The
components of other comprehensive income for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising durin:g the period.........
Less: reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses included in net income . .

Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities ......................
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Net of tax

2005

2004

2003

(In thousands)

$(782) $(246) $ 248
3 27

(330)

$(779) $(219) §$ (82)
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20. Quarte}rly Data

The qu‘arterly results of operations are summarized below (in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31, 2005
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

2005 2005 2005 2005
(Unaudited)
Total revenues ............ ... ... ... R $20,062  $21,068 $21,179 $20,821
Net INCOME . ..ottt i $ 1,194 § 1,221 $ 1,073 $ 1,972
Net inc{:ome per common share-basic ............ $ 14 § 14 $ .13 $ .23
Net income per common share-diluted ........... $ 14 § .14 $ .13 $ .23

Year Ended December 31, 2004
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

2004 2004 2004 2004
(Unaudited)
Total r;‘evcnues ............................... $17,417  $20,015 $21,579 $21,367
Net in}comc .................................. $ 1592 § 1,341 $ 1,662 $ 1,309
Net income per common share-basic ............ $ .19 § .16 $ .20 $ .16
Net income per common share-diluted .. ......... $ 19 § 16 $ .19 $ .15

|

21. Subséquent Events

On February 22, 2006, AMIC entered into an agency agreement with First Integrated Health, Inc. (“FIH”)
Under this| agreement, FIH will begin writing employer Medical Stop-Loss through Independence American as
soon as practicable, and will move the majority of its existing block of CDHP and Medical Stop-Loss to
Indcpendel‘!lce American in January 2007, with the balance moving by the end of 2007. Independence American
paid FIH $2,500,000, which FIH simultaneously paid to Independence Holding Company (“IHC”) in considera-
tion of IHC issuing 125,000 shares of IHC common stock (“THC Stock™) to FIH. Independence American will
hold the IHC Stock in escrow until such time as its aggregate annualized premiums written through FIH reaches
$30 million.

This Agreement terminates on December 31, 2011; provided, it will automatically be extended to Decem-
ber 31, 2016, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions as to premium volume and profitability. Assuming these
conditions |are satisfied, FIH would be entitled to up to an additional $2,500,000 depending on the value of the IHC
Stock as o‘f December 31, 2011. If the Agreement is extended to December 31, 2016, subject to satisfaction of
certain further conditions as to premium volume and profitability, FIH would be entitled to up to an additional
$5,000, 000 depending on the value of the IHC Stock as of December 31, 2016. In addition, FIH could be entitled to
a $1,000, 000 bonus on December 31, 2013 subject to satisfaction of certain conditions as to premium volume and

profitability.
|

FIH \1vi11 enter into a loss ratio slide arrangement whereby Independence American cedes a .35 to 1 two-way
slide off of the pivot point of a 100% combined loss ratio risk share. All premiums with respect to the arrangement
will be controlled by Independence American. FIH will collateralize this obligation with a letter of credit, cash or
the IHC Stock. Independence American will receive customary carrier fees and Insurers Administrative Corpora-

tion will receive a management fee on the fully-insured business.

There is no material relationship between the Company and FIH, other than in respect of the agreement.
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“Ttem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None ;‘
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

AMIC’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fihancial Officer supervised and participated in AMIC’s evaluation
of its disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Disclosure controls and
procedures are controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in AMIC’s
periodic reports filed or submitted under the Securjties Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded; processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and
forms. Based upon that evaluation, AMIC’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that
AMIC’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

There has been no change in AMIC’s internal ?control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2005
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, AMIC’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and the Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm can be found in Item 8 of this form 10-K.

' PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of Registrant

The information required by this Item is hereby incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Proxy Statement
for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Election of Directors”, “Executive Officers™ and
“Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation ‘

Information required by this Item is incorporafted by reference to “Executive Compensation” and “Board of
Directors” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, except that the
information required by paragraphs (i), (k) and (1) of Item 402 Regulation S-K (§229.402) and set forth in such
Proxy Statement is specifically not incorporated by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
l
The information required by this Item is herebgf incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Proxy Statement

for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under :thc captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners
and Management.” :

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item is hereb)} incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Proxy Statement
for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is hereby incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Proxy Statement
for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under} the caption “Principal Accountant Fees and Services.”
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Fz‘r‘tancial Statements and Exhibits

Page
*(1) Finczn‘cz'al Statement Schedules.
Schedule I~ Summary of investments — other than investments in affiliates ....................... 71
Schedule 1I|— Condensed financial information of Parent Company ............. ..., 72-74
Schedule TII — Supplementary insurance information ........... ... ..ttt iiniianenn. 75
Schedule TV — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts .......... .. i 76
* All other ‘Jschedules have been omitted as they are not applicable or not required, or the information is
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto.
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(2) Exhibit’s. See Index to Exhibits included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K ..................
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or iS(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on March 14, 2006.

AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP.

Signature
/s/  Roy T.K. Thung President, and Chief Executive Officer
(Roy T.K. Thung) ; (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Teresa A. Herbert Chief Financial Officer
(Teresa A. Herbert) (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in!the capacities on March 14, 2006.

Signature
/s/ Edward A. Bennett ~ Acting Non Executive Chairman of
(Edward A. Bennett) the Board of Directors
/s/ _Edward Netter " Director

{Edward Netter)

/s/  Ronald I. Simon Director
(Ronald I. Simon)

/s/_Roy. TK. Thung Director
(Roy. T.K. Thung) \

/s/  Myron M. Picoult Director
(Myron M. Picoult) |

/s/  Martin E. Winter ‘ Director
(Martin E. Winter) \
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AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Item 15(A) (3)

Exhibit No. Description of Document

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2002, between Registrant, SSH Corporation and

Independence Holding Company. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s
J Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 31, 2002.

3.1 Second Amended and restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the registrant’s Annual Report on form 10K for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002. '

3.2 | Amended By-Laws of the Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the registrant’s

Annual Report on form 10K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002,

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2002, between Registrant and Madison Investors
Corporation. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated July 31, 2002.

4.2 Stock Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2002, between Registrant, Independence Holding Company
and Madison Investors Corporation. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 31, 2002.

({ Rights Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2002, between Registrant and Mellon Investor Services LLC

} which includes the form of Certificate of Designations of the Series A Junior Participating Preferred

\

\

4.1

Stack of Registrant as Exhibit A, the form of Right Certificate as Exhibit B and the Summary of
Rights to Purchase Preferred Shares as Exhibit C. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 31, 2002.

Services Agreement, dated as of November 15, 2002, by and between American Independence Corp.
and Independence Holding Company. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 14, 2002.

Agency Agreement, dated February 22, 2006, between the Registrant and First Integrated Health,
Inc.

2J
10 (iii}. 1  Registrant 1998 Stock Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 of the Registrant’s
f Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated May 10, 1999.

2

Registrant 1999 Supplemental Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 of the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated June 8, 1999.

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

231 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1} Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

312 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Exhibits will be furnished upon request for a reasonable fee.
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SCHEDULE 1

AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS — OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005

Amount
Shown on
: Amortized Fair Balance
Type of Investment : Cost Value Sheet
: (In thousands)
FIXED MATURITIES:
BONDS: »
Corporate Securities. . ...................... l .................. $22,849 $22,252 $22.252
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO) and asset backed
secuntlcsABS...........................} .................. 5,570 5,430 5,430
U.S. Government and agencies obligations . ... 3 .................. 7,802 7,635 7,635
Government sponsored enterprise (GSE) MBS ................... 3,563 3,501 3,501
Agency mortgage backed pass through securltles; (MBS) ........... 1,654 1,626 1,626
TOTAL FIXED MATURITIES . ........... ‘ .................. 41,438 40,444 40,444
NON-REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCKS .................. 1,954 1,884 1,884
Short-term iNVeStments. . . ..................... L 5,071 5,071 5,071
Investment in Majestic . ....................... T 1,082 1,082 1,082
TOTAL INVESTMENTS ............... .. L $49,545 $48,481 $48,481




j SCHEDULE I
J AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP.

| BALANCE SHEETS
; (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

As of December 31,
f ‘ 2005 2004

(In thousands)

| ASSETS:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES . ... ...ttt et e § 2913 § 1437
Short-term IMVESTMEIES . . . ..ttt ettt e e ettt ettt et e 1,979 3,428
Restricted r‘cash ............................................................. — 800
Investments in continuing consolidated subsidiaries ............. ... cviiiii.n. 63,589 58,733
Other recegvables ........................................................... 77 67
@ T 569 319
Deferred tlch 11 S S PP 13,752 13,459

TOTAL‘ ASSETS $ 82879 § 78,243

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and other Habilities . . ... .........oovueiirineeaeeeins, $ 601 $ 532
Incomeltaxes DAYADIE L. e — 8
ReStructuring accrual . ... ... ..iuunre et — 300
Net liabilities associated with discontinued operations .......................c.. 808 936
TOTAL{ LIABILITIES . . .. e i e 1,409 1,776
STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Preferred stock (none issued) ... — —
Commc;on stock, 9,180,695 and 9,180,695 shares issued and 8,451,223 and
8,438,889 shares outstanding, respectively ......... ... . il i, 92 92
Paid-in|capital . ... ...ttt e 479,192 479,017
Accum]‘ulated other comprehensive loss:
Unreali[‘zed loss on INVeSTMENtS, Met. . .ottt (1,064) (285)
Treasury stock, at cost, 729,472 and 741,806 shares, respectively ................. (8,730) (8,877)
Accum;ulated AefiCIt .« .ottt (388,020)  (393,480)
TOTAL %TOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY ..o e e e s 81,470 76,467
TOTAL I}LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY ...................... $ 82879 § 78243

\
\
|
/
|
[

The financial information of American Independence Corp. (Parent Company Only) should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.

72




REVENUES:
Net investment income .......

Net realized gains. ... .....oovennreenninn.. DR 248 249 125
Otherincome ......... ... . ... ... .. .. ... e — 15 3
; 369 354 476

EXPENSES: |
General and administrative expenses and other .......................... 1,443 1,741 818
Non-cash compensation expense ............. PP 227 456 141
Restructuring (income) expense.............. e (67) — 152

Loss before income tax expense . .
Income tax expense (benefit) .. ..

Income (loss) before equity in net

Equity in net income of subsidiaries............. PP 6,585 10,675 8,797

Income from continuing operations
Discontinued Operations:

Income (loss) of discontinued operations ...... ........................ (59) 240 110
e $ 5460 $ 5904 $12,671

Netincome ...................

.............. R.............”......... (1,234)  (1,843)  (635)

SCHEDULE II — (Continued)

AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

; Year Ended December 31,
! 2005 2004 2003
! (In thousands)

.............. 8 12108 90§ 348

1,603 2,197 1,111

.............. (168) 3,168 (4,399)
income of subsi@iaries ................... (1,066)  (5,011) 3,764

............. ... 5519 5664 12,561

The financial information of American Indcpenidence Corp. (Parent Company Only) should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
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AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

SCHEDULE I — (Continued)

Year Ended December 31,

|

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net inc!ome ....................................................... $ 5460 $ 5904 $12,671
Adjus_tr?;nts to reconcile net income to net cash provided from operating
activities:
Deferre(d TAX EXPEIISE & o vt ettt et et e e e e (203) 3,065 (3,440)
Equity '}n net income of subsidiaries............ ... .. ool (6,588)  (10,675)  (8,797)
Equity INCOME . . . .ottt e e e e — — (258)
Net realized BAINS . o oo e e (248) (249) (125)
Provision for restructuring . .......... o i (67) — 152
(Gain) iloss from discontinued operations ............ ... .. .. i 59 (240) (110)
Nomn-cash compensation eXPense .. .........o.vueerunmernnneeninnnnnn, 227 456 141
Change il“l operating assets and liabilities:
Net sales of trading securities . .......... ... .. i i 248 249 —
Change: in deferred tax asset . ... ... (90) (533)  (5,889)
Changé in other assets and liabilities . ............. .. .. ... ool 343 (1,043) (723)
Net ca‘s‘h provided from operating activities ............................ (859) (3,066)  (6,378)
CASH FILOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in investments in and advances to consolidated subsidiaries ....... 952 3,892 (3,788)
ChangeTJ in discontinued liabilities . . ........ ... ... . . (187) (192)  (2,960)
Net (purchases) sales of equity securities...............ooiiiinan.., — — 4
Net (purchases) sales of short-term investments ........................ 1,475 (320) (3,153)
Redemption of other investments ........ ... ... i ... — — 10,000
Net ‘}cash provided from investing activities ... ............ ... ... ..... 2,240 3,380 103
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Exercis‘e of common stock Options .. ... ..ottt 95 198 130
Net lcash provided from financing activities. .......................... 95 198 130
Increase r(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ......................... 1,476 512 (6,145)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ........................... 1,437 925 7,070
Cash and‘ cash equivalents, end of period ....... ... . ... ... oL $2913 $§ 1437 $ 925
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for:
TAEETEST . . .\ oottt ettt — — —
TICOME TAKES « . .+« oottt et e et e e et e $ 335 $ 544 $ 180

|
The financial information of American Independence Corp. (Parent Company Only) should be read in
i conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
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AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY iNSURANCE INFORMATION

SCHEDULE 1

Net
Inves:ment Insurance Selling,
; Income Benefits General and
Insurance Premiums Gains/ and Administrative Premiums
Reserves Earned (Losses) Claims Expenses Written
(In thousands)

FISCAL Year Ended December 31, 2_005: \
IAIC $20,882 $66,118 $2,505  $44,722 $20,685 $66,118
MGUS .o . — — 195 — 8,835 —
COTPOTALE . . . oot i — (199) — 1,445 —
Total .. oo $20,882 $66,118  $2,501  $44,722  $30,965 $66,118
FISCAL Year Ended December 31, 2004 i
IAIC . $22,240 $60,203  $2,575 $39,173  $18,800 $60,203
MGUS ..o — — 61 — 8,630 —
Corporate. . ... = — (345) — 1,742 —
Total ... $22,240  $60,203  $2,291  $39,173  $29,172 $60,203
FISCAL Year Ended December 31, 2003 ‘\
IAIC $18,635 $37,817  $2,343  $23,312  $11,026 $37,817
MGUS ..o | — 46 — 7,882 —
Corporate. .. ..o l — (422) — 816 —
Total ........... . ... ... e $18,635 $37,817 $1,967 $23312  $19,724 $37,817
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| AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE CORP.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
SCHEDULE IV — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Charged to
Balance at Charged to Other
Beginning Costs and Accounts Deductions Balance at
of Period Expenses Describe Describe End of Period

(In thousands)
Valuatioﬂ Allowance on Deferred Tax

Asset:
Year ended December 31,2005 .......... $ 88,867 $ 272 $ — $ 2,079(f) $87,060
Year end}‘ed December 31,2004 .......... $ 89,664 § (275) $ — $ 522(d) $88,867
Year ended December 31,2003 .......... $102,212  $(2,322) $ — $10,226(c) $89,664
Net Liabilities Associated with

Discontinued Operations:
Year ended December 31, 2005 .......... $ 936 §  90(e) $§ — $ 218(a) $§ 808
Year enc‘ied December 31,2004 .......... $ 1,368 § — $(240)(b) $ 192(a) $§ 936
Year ended December 31,2003 .......... $ 4438 §$§ — $(110)(b) $ 2,960(a) § 1,368
Restruct’uring Reserve:
Year ended December 31, 2005 .......... $ 300 §$§ — $ — $ 300(a) $§ —
Year enc‘kd December 31,2004 .......... $ 866 $ — $ — $ 566(2) $ 300
Year en((ied December 31,2003 .......... $ L7177 § 152 $§ — $ 1,003(a) § 866

(a) Am{ounts written off and payments applied, net of receipts.
(b) Payments applied were less than original reserve estimate.

(c) $5,760 of this reduction is due to acquisition of Marlton, effective January 2003. The remaining $4,466

reduction is based on management’s periodic evaluation of the valuation allowance.
(d) Re/duction due to acquisition of Majestic, effective July 2004,

(e) Expected payments were more than original reserve estimate.
(f) Reduction is based on management’s periodic evaluation of the valuation allowance.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Transfer Agent

» Please direct communications regarding individual stock records and address changes to: Registrar and

Transfer Company, 10 Commerce Drive, Cré}nford, NJ 07016 (website: www.rtco.com). You can call our
transfer agent at (800) 368-5948. \

Investor Relations

+ Securities analysts and investors should contacjt Investor Relations by writing to the Company’s headquarters
or by calling (212) 355-4141 x 3047

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

|
I

» KPMG LLP, 345 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10154

Corporate Headquarters

¢ Our corporate headquarters are located at 485 Madison Ave., 14" Floor, New York, New York 10022

Corporate Governance

» The Company maintains a website at www.americanindependencecorp.com. Visitors to the Company
website can view and print copies of the Company’s SEC filings, including Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, as
soon as reasonably practicable after those filings are made with the SEC. Copies of the Company’s Code of
Business Ethics and Code of Conduct are available through the Company website. Alternatively, sharehold-
ers may obtain, without charge, copies of all of these documents, as well as additional copies of this report, by
writing to Investor Relations at the Company’s headquarters. Please note that the information contained on
Company’s website is not incorporated by reference in, or considered to be a part of, this document.
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